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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EEHE

This steep decline is mainly attributable to three factors. The first is

fairly sluggish market demand across the retail sector and the resultant
hindrance of growth in RoadShow's revenues. The second is the increase
in costs — licence and royalty fees in particular — as well as our ongoing
investment in the manpower and hardware needed for business
diversification into new media. Last but not least, the Group recorded
exchange losses due to the depreciation of the Renminbi ("RMB")
against the Hong Kong Dollar.

While the performance was far from optimal, the decline in our profit
levels should not detract from our team’s commitment to the integration
of our core business lines — namely BUS-TV, IN-BUS and BUS-BODY.
Facing a tough market situation as well as keen competition, the

Group and its people have maintained steady progress across all newly
diversified business segments that will ensure our future capability to best
serve Hong Kong's advertisers and agencies.

Consolidating BUS-TV, IN-BUS and BUS-BODY media choices and

our recently launched online portal, our unique integrated advertising
platform remains perfectly placed to drive growth via the securing of
more long-term contracts when the local advertising market recovers.
Making it much easier for advertisers and agencies to achieve
measurable marketing targets is yet another way in which we strive to
deliver on our promise to our clients and to ensure that we can ride
out ongoing economic uncertainty. To this end, we are continuing to
hone our competitive edge in the area of out-of-home (“OOH") media
advertising via enhanced co-management of bus shelter advertising.

Regarding the recovery of our investment in AdSociety Daye Advertising
Company Limited (“AdSociety Daye”) in mainland China, the Group

has entered into agreements for selling and transferring its entire

32.7% equity interest in AdSociety Daye as well as selling and assigning
its entire interest in the shareholder’s loans together with interest
outstanding owing from AdSociety Daye at a total consideration of the
Hong Kong dollar equivalent of RMB50 million. RMB20 million has been
received by the Group in connection with the disposal of the loans last
year. Subsequently, the entire equity interest has been transferred as at 31
December 2014, and a gain on disposal before tax of HK$36.6 million has
been recognised. The net gain on disposal after tax was HK$32.2 million.

Results for the year

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group generated total
operating revenue of HK$475.2 million. This figure represents a decrease
of approximately 2.7% from the previous financial year. Profit attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company in FY2014 was HK$70.6 million,
compared with HK$104.9 million for FY2013. For the year ended 31
December 2014, profit from operations was approximately HK$48.1
million, representing a decrease of approximately 51.4% from the
previous financial year.
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Dividends

The Directors recommended a final dividend of HK3.85 cents per share
for the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: HK7.94 cents per share).
This represents a pay-out ratio of approximately 100% of the current
year's operating profit (2013: 100%). The Directors further recommended
the payment of a special dividend of HK4.10 cents per share for the year
ended 31 December 2014 (2013: HK Nil cent per share).

Prospects

Hong Kong's ad market continues to be impacted by the economic
uncertainty over world markets and the local retail segment. While we
foresee that adspend is likely to remain sluggish for most of 2015, we

will strive hard to maintain the competitiveness of our core operations
including tight cost control to push for higher cost efficiency. In moving
forward into the next financial year and beyond, we will also maintain our
proven policy of ensuring healthy business expansion by meticulously
examining opportunities to diversify our business portfolio as and where
such opportunities arise.

Community

Determined to be a good corporate citizen and give back to the
communities that sustain its business, RoadShow has long been a very
enthusiastic supporter of worthy causes. In FY2014, we continued to
deliver on this promise by doing our utmost to help needy members of
society, enthusiastically supporting various deserving NGOs and charity
organisations.

Appreciation

The Group would never have been able to achieve and sustain its
success without the unstinting support of its staff, clients, suppliers and
shareholders. | wish to extend my sincere thanks to everyone of you for
your valuable contribution to our success. We all look forward to your
continued support throughout the next 12 months and beyond.

In closing, our very special thanks must go to the Audit Committee,
chaired by Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung and comprising Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI,
Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan Leung, Mr YUNG Wing Chung and Ms
Winnie NG, for their painstaking work.

At this point, | would also like to extend my heartfelt appreciation to my
fellow Directors, in particular Managing Director Mr Alex MO Tik Sang,
for their valuable contributions towards establishing the Group's solid
foundation in meeting the forthcoming challenges as well as maximising
future value for shareholders.

Dr John CHAN Cho Chak

Chairman
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The year 2014 saw the Group'’s results adversely affected by a significant drop in
operating profit. Facing tough market conditions in the advertising industry such as
a weakened retail segment and social instability, marketers adopted a conservative
approach to budget utilisation. In doing so, they adversely affected many conventional
media and advertising platforms.
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MANAGING DIRECTOR'S REPORT
EEARERE

The impact on the Group's business was pronounced, particularly
when our attempts to diversify and widen our portfolio are taken
into account.

To maintain core competencies as we prepare to meet future
challenges, our senior management team began implementing
several counter-measures. Specific examples of ways we were able
to raise our competitiveness in the market included focused cost-
saving programmes, reallocation of resources and the further
synergising of conventional and new media platforms. As a result,
the integration we have been building these last few years will
continue to provide a solid foundation as we strive to deliver direct
results to marketers.

The year just ended also saw several new additions to our Group
portfolio. Among them were the billboards at Aberdeen Tunnel and
the giant billboards at Hung Hom directly facing the Cross Harbour
Tunnel.

2014 also saw us record healthy progress in our provision of
integrated marketing services such as event management, content
and advertising production. The pioneering of our new roadshow.hk
online portal and launch of the HK2gather app will further create
synergy with BUS-TV. In achieving direct results and nurturing a
mobile community, we are likely to further strengthen the solid
platform via which we will create future value for our shareholders.

In cementing our status as one of Hong Kong's leading Total
Marketing Solutions providers, we are also underlining our position
as "An integrated Media Group For Hong Kong People”. As such,
we are continuing to do all we can to help the truly disadvantaged
by leveraging our huge contact network across Hong Kong's
commercial sector on behalf of charitable organisations and
volunteer services. As we pledged in last year’s RoadShow Group
report, in striving to shape a more harmonious society for all, we will
also maintain our proven policy of collaborating closely with various
strategic partners.

Moving forwards into 2015 and beyond, we foresee a difficult
macroeconomic environment and even fiercer competition. As a
result, our team will continue to do their utmost to achieve greater
value and improve results for both our clients and our shareholders.

While FY2014 was a demanding year for Hong Kong advertisers,
there are many positive points we must remember not to overlook.
Chief amongst them are the careful stewardship and “steady hand
on the tiller” of our Chairman and Board of Directors, plus the
tireless professionalism and team spirit of our workforce as whole.
In closing, please join with me in extending our sincere appreciation
to each and everyone who contributed to the sustainability of our
business during what continue to be challenging times for everyone
involved in our industry.
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Corporate Social Responsibility

RoadShow's tireless advocacy of talent and ideas has always been
mirrored by the way in which we offer our unstinting support to socially
worthwhile policies and practices. As always, our core objective remains
the creation of value not only for local consumers, but also our staff and
across our corporate culture as a whole. As we look ahead into 2015 and
beyond, we once again reiterate our commitment to redoubling our
efforts in "helping the less fortunate”, “protecting the environment” and
“re-engineering Hong Kong's competitiveness”.

Thank you once more for playing your part in helping the Group to ride
out another very demanding year for the local advertising industry!

Alex MO Tik Sang

Managing Director
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW
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BUS-TV
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FY2014 saw BUS-TV face stiff
challenges. But fortunately,
our dominance in market
coverage continued to deliver
the highest cost-efficiency to
marketers.
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The next 12-month cycle will
see us continue to better service

brands and advertisers by striving
to fu integrate BUS-TV with
ther RoadShow platforms and so
j jeve greater synergy.
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B U S — B O DY Despite fiercer than ever competition, the

year just ended was another satisfactory
—_— one for BUS-BODY. This business unit's

j] -1 Ea %’ sustained effectiveness in attracting new

J =TI partners, especially in the highly lucrative
blue chip sector, meant we as a Group
were also able to measurably expand our
client base. Advertisers’ and their agencies’
overwhelmingly positive response to our
unique integration of BUS-TV, BUS-BODY and
IN-BUS via Theme Bus once again reiterates
that BUS-BODY gives brands a highly creative
and impactful tool with which to broaden their
appeal.
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FY2014 saw the overall momentum
of our IN-BUS segment continue
to remain stable. Key measures
implemented to ensure this
segment’s further growth as

it evolved included adding to

our platforms’ attractiveness by

unveiling powerful new advertising
formats. Our IN-BUS teams also
further enhanced their channels’
creativity and interactivity via a more
innovative leveraging of technology.
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW
E S 361

Operated in conjunction with JCDecaux Cityscape Limited since
2001, this arm of our business posted encouraging growth during
the year just ended. Its positive development ultimately not only
contributed significantly to our revenue and profits, but also
measurably enhanced our market share and status as probably
Hong Kong's foremost OOH advertising specialist.
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Having first opened its doors for business in December 2012, our
Billboards division was yet another of our many groundbreaking
business initiatives. One of this division’s earliest results was our
appointment as the Government Property Agency'’s exclusive

media representative for outdoor sites at Hung Hing Road at the
Causeway Bay end of the Cross Harbour Tunnel. As a result, we
continue to oversee billboards whose unrivalled location guarantees
unprecedented impact for advertisers wishing to reach one of Hong
Kong's biggest target audiences.

March 2013 saw the implementation of the December 2012 contract
we had agreed with Route 3 (CPS) Company Limited for the soliciting
of various billboard advertising spaces at Route 3 (CPS). In June
2013, we also commenced our landmark role as advertising agent for
the Star Ferry’s outdoor pier and ferry panels.

New advertising spaces we have added to our portfolio in FY2014
included Aberdeen Tunnel and Hip Kee Godown Nos 1 & 2 in

Hung Hom. In addition to generating new income streams, these
developments will also serve as an excellent launch pad for the future
promotion of integrated programs.

FY2015 will see us continue our efforts to secure our OOH market
share by selectively expanding our billboard network. Along the
way, we will carry on doing our utmost to enhance our ad displays
and create maximum impact Territorywide by capitalising on new
technologies and ad formats as and when such opportunities arise.
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW
RO

DIGITAL & MOBILE
DEVELOPMENT

BIERRBTEZERE QO

ROADSHOW.HK
L #8uh

une 2013 saw us deliver on our
mission to establish ourselves as an
integrated platform with the launch of
the roadshow.hk portal. Showcasing
popular bloggers and featuring quality
content, the new portal offers advertis-
ers interaction with local “netizens”
and is continuing to take consumer
F n%agement to new heights.
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To stay relevant and profitable, we will strive to
integrate traditional media’s strengths across an
increasingly digital horizon. Leveraging our online
and mobile platforms provide seamless multi-dimen-
sional capability needed to achieve this goal.
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Easy Information
Collection and
Forwarding of
Invitations
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Endless
Lifestyle and
Entertainment
Information
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MOBILE APP F#E A2 -
HK2gather

2014 Q3's roll out of our new HK2gather app has
further strengthened the integration of our online
and mobile platforms. A uniquely functional
lifestyle app, HK2gather tempts browsers with a
wide range of dining selections including editor’s
choices and celebrities’ recommendations. Its
enhanced content will play a major role in helping
advertisers to engage consumers wherever they
are.
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW
E S 361

ire 5 B RS

One of the key advantages of our multi-media platform is that
it enables our professional programme team to tailor genuinely
groundbreaking Integrated Marketing Services for clients.
Demand for our expertise in this area continued to be strong
throughout the year just ended.

AEENZREFENET—EAXREE  ERARENEXRTISH
EEBEAIF AL T 6 /TP R E—E_NEA IS HEREIRT © £
BE—FR > BERHNAREERBOFZTIHFERY -

RoadShow Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2014




Our professional content production team remains renowned for the skill with which it tailors content

that perfectly matches clients’ needs. What's more, our already enviable reputation in the area of event
management is now reflected across our organising of a variety of product launches, catwalk shows, talent
contests, awards presentation ceremonies and concerts, etc. Such a broad range of specialisations means
we continue to be perfectly qualified to the customising of multi-media matrices for impactful advertising
campaigns that far exceed both our clients and their consumers’ expectations.

The list of integrated campaigns that we have launched over the last few years is a lengthy one. In 2014, we
were both proud and privileged to have been appointed as the HKAEE's Management Consultant for a fifth
successive year at the “Hong Kong Awards for Environmental Excellence”.

Last year also saw us pioneer a reality-style travelogue show called “Grad. Guy Travela” for Hong Thai Travel
Services Ltd. This wide ranging campaign involved not only production of the programme itself, but also
on-line recruitment and public voting for participants. To ensure the initiative made maximum noise, we even
organised different cross-over advertorials, blog articles and prize-winning games!
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW
E S 361
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RoadShow has long been applauded for its commitment to making a meaningful contribution to Hong Kong life. In the
year ended 31 December 2014, we continued to deliver on this promise by organising a diverse range of corporate
social responsibility (CSR) initiatives. In addition to helping the needy, specific examples of our activities included
community service, environmental protection and promoting people’s wellbeing, etc.

Leveraging our 2013 CSR campaign’s momentum, the year under review saw us once again eagerly team up with other
like-minded corporations and worthy causes to help the less fortunate. Spanning fully five waves, our recent March to
May “Project PC needy Reboot” was just one of many examples of our good corporate citizenship in action.

Ably assisted by our partner, Caritas HK Computer Workshop, this initiative saw us demonstrate our compassion by
hosting a series of Project PC Needy Reboot voluntary events. Notable examples included a “Computer Fun Day for
Low-income Families” (1 March), two “Heartwarming Gatherings for the Elderly” (31 March and 24 April), a “Children’s
Easter Fun Day” (12 April), and a “Mother’s Day Celebration with Children” (10 May).

The campaign’s ultimate goal was to urge Hongkongers to donate their old computers for refurbishment by Caritas HK
Computer Workshop and redistribution to disadvantaged old folks, children and low-income families.

To further raise public awareness, the campaign also included an “1 Like = HK$1"” Facebook drive. We subsequently
donated HK$1 for each “like” vote we received on the event's Facebook page. In all, RoadShow and its donors raised
some HK$40,525 for Caritas HK.
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As a Group, we have long done all we can to deliver on our
commitment to promoting environmental conservation. In
2014, we were proud to organise our popular “ECO Star
Awards 2014" for a third straight year.

The ultimate aim of the “ECO Star Awards 2014" was to
encourage public support for sustainable environmental
protection development. The ECO Star Awards programme
plays its part by recognising individuals who are making
important contributions to environmental protection.

On the local and international awards front, the year under
review saw our continuous commitment to greener office
operations honoured with the World Green Organisation’s
(WGO) coveted Green Label and the United Nations
Millennium Development Goals’' (UNMDGs) prestigious
Better World Company Label.
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Each year, we also offer deserving causes generous
tranches of airtime to publicise themselves

and their fundraising activities on our BUS-TV
broadcasts. In FY2014, some 113 NGOs benefited
from this 100% free, high-profile exposure.

In eagerly promoting the importance of family
education, RoadShow constantly underlines

the vital role and status of parents. To this end,
2014 saw us once again join forces with the

Hong Kong Institute of Family Education and
organise the Territory’s second “C.E.O. Parent
Election”. We backed the initiative by producing
and broadcasting an eight-episode series on
RoadShow’s BUS-TV. Examining real life cases
involving widespread family matters, the program'’s
aim is to educate parents and identify satisfying
solutions for everyone affected by such problems.

BF  ARETERAAAERMENEEHBREHITHN
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For The Year Ended 31 December
BEZE+-A=1+—HLEE

Full Year Results (HK$'000)

2 ERBGEMT ) z014 2013
Turnover & %8 459,462 462,002
EBITDA AR&HHIE - HIE - 8 REHAT & A 98,982 135,755
Operating profit 4% 2 7 48,087 98,882
Net profit 4B 7 76,682 108,622
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) BIREARZEF| (L) 7.08 10.51
Consolidated Balance Sheet Data (HK$'000)

FRREERERMB(EYTT)

Cash and cash equivalents 5i& RIR & EEY 438,816 359,066
Total assets & E 42 (H 790,005 784,509
Total liabilities & E#5 113,363 100,057
Total equity attributable to equity shareholders % 5 f& {5 1z 48 58 666,042 674,747
Cash Flow Data (HK$'000)

REeERBEB(BETT)

Cash generated from operations R 8 & & /E KR & 69,914 25,627
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 104,443 5,389
ReRBEFEEYIEINFE

Financial Ratios

B It &

Current ratio &)t & 6.50 7.12
EBITDA margin R&tAI& « HI8 - & REHFTH B A =X 20.8% 27.8%
Net profit margin /% F)F %= 16.1% 22.2%
Debt-to-equity ratio BE& ANt & 0% 0%
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Results

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group reported total
operating revenue of HK$475.2 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 2.7% over the previous year. Profit attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company was HK$70.6 million in 2014,
compared with HK$104.9 million in 2013. For the year ended

31 December 2014, profit from operations was approximately
HK$48.1 million (2013: HK$98.9 million), representing a decrease
of approximately 51.4%. The Group continues to maintain a strong
financial position with bank deposits and cash of HK$438.8 million
as at 31 December 2014 (2013: HK$359.1 million).

Operating Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group reported total
operating revenue of HK$475.2 million, of which HK$459.5 million
was from media sales services and HK$15.7 million was from
other revenue and other net income. Revenue generated from the
media sales services was HK$459.5 million in 2014 compared with
HK$462.0 million in 2013, representing a 0.5% decrease mainly
resulting from the unfavorable demand in the market.

Operating Expenses

The Group's operating expenses increased by HK$37.8 million, from

HK$389.3 million in 2013 to HK$427.1 million in 2014 as a result of

the increase in royalty, licence and management fees as well as cost

of production.

Dividends

The Directors recommended a final dividend of HK3.85 cents per

share for the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: HK7.94 cents per
share). This represents a pay-out ratio of approximately 100% of the

current year's operating profit. The Directors further recommended

the payment of a special dividend of HK4.10 cents per share for the

year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: HK Nil cent per share).

BE_Z-NE+_A=t—HILHFE *&
EESE %«**uﬁz)\i@éﬁ/ﬁﬁgﬂs 200,0007¢ * &

EERLE2.7% ° —FEHRRRRER

&1L BRI A8% 70,600,0007T I —T—=4F
Bl &5 104,900,000 » HZE T — M4

+-A=1— Eutir KERBFNABBE

48,100,000 7L (ZZF— =4 : /&% 98,900,000
) Tl?émsm% RNEEEEHESEENE
B#R  R=F—mE&E+=-A=+—8 - 7
FH MBS /B 438,800,000 0( = —=
F ¢ 7% 359,100,000 7T ) °

RERA

i—?
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BER S ACE IR N\ B FE 515 475,200,000 7T © B
FE M 459,500,000 705 2R B IR EE SN & RS
7% 15,700,000 7T A1 38 B E i U A B H A U
FFE R -IFMEBEEERBSAES
HUR A A7 459,500,000 7T © #itk —E—=
FHYE 462,000,000 TLERS 0.5% HRTE © T)
TEHRTHERTIRAE -

z«< g )Eﬁ

REBNEEBERR_T—ZF8%
389,300,000 xisbu,%mzsoo,ooo TEZ
T — U H) B 427,100,000 7T © THEH A EF
& BHENEEEANRER AT -

i3S
EEREREE-_T-—ME+-_A=+—RH1t
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Cash Flow

In 2014, the cash generated from the operations of the Group

was HK$69.9 million (2013: HK$25.6 million). Payment for capital
expenditure in 2014 amounted to HK$7.0 million (2013: HK$12.9
million). The consolidated cash flow statement of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2014 is set out on pages 80 to 81 of this
Annual Report.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

At 31 December 2014, the Group’s bank deposits and cash
amounted to HK$438.8 million (2013: HK$359.1 million),
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, US dollars and Renminbi.
Apart from providing working capital to support its media sales,
the Group maintains a strong cash position to meet the potential
needs for business expansion and development.

At 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group did not have any
bank borrowings. The gearing ratio, representing the ratio of bank

borrowings to the total share capital and reserves of the Group
was 0% at 31 December 2014 and 2013.

At 31 December 2014, the Group had stand-by banking facilities
totalling HK$30.0 million (2013: HK$25.0 million).

At 31 December 2014, the Group had net current assets of
HK$623.3 million (2013: HK$611.3 million) and total assets of
HK$790.0 million (2013: HK$784.5 million).

Charge on Assets

At 31 December 2014, bank deposits of HK$61.4 million (2013:
HK$61.4 million) were pledged mainly to secure certain bank
guarantees provided by the subsidiaries of the Company to fellow
subsidiaries regarding their due performance and payment under

certain licence agreements between the subsidiaries of the Company

and the fellow subsidiaries.
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Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates and Related
Hedges

The Group’s monetary assets and transactions are principally
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, US dollars and Renminbi. The
Company incurred an exchange loss of approximately HK$5.1 million
(2013: exchange gain of approximately HK$4.4 million) due to the
depreciation in Renminbi against Hong Kong dollars. During the year,
there was no material fluctuation in the exchange rates of Hong Kong
dollars and US dollars. The Group did not engage in any derivatives
activities and did not commit to any financial instruments to hedge
its balance sheet exposure in 2014. At 31 December 2014 and 2013,
the unutilised amount of proceeds from the Global Offering and the
exercise of an over-allotment option by the underwriters on 18 July
2001 were placed into bank deposits.

Capital Expenditures and Capital Commitments

Capital expenditures incurred by the Group during 2014 amounted
to HK$7.1 million (2013: HK$11.2 million). The breakdown of capital
expenditures incurred is shown in notes 13 and 14 to the financial
statements on pages 114 to 115 of this Annual Report.

Capital commitments outstanding and not provided for in the
financial statements of the Group at 31 December 2014 amounted
to HK$111.0 million (2013: HK$111.0 million), which is mainly for the
upgrade of the existing MMOB system for the BUS-TV advertising
business. The commitments are to be financed by internal resources
of the Group.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities at 31
December 2014 and 2013.

Accounting Standards and Policies

The financial statements set out on pages 75 to 149 have been
prepared in accordance with the applicable disclosure requirements
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute

of Certified Public Accountants, accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Employees and Remuneration Policies

At 31 December 2014, the Group had 167 full-time employees.
The Group offers a comprehensive and competitive remuneration
and benefits package to all its employees. In addition, it offers a
performance bonus scheme to its senior staff based on achievement
of business objectives and a sales commission scheme to its sales
team based on achievement of advertising revenue targets. The
Group has adopted a provident fund scheme for its employees

in Hong Kong as required under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance and participated in employee pension schemes
organised and governed by the relevant local governments for its
employees in Mainland China.

Connected Transactions

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group had the following
continuing connected transactions, details of which are set out
below.

i) The Group entered into the transactions with connected parties
respectively in 2009 and 2014 as set out below. The transactions
constituted continuing connected transactions which are subject
to reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The details of the transactions listed below were disclosed in
the circulars of the Company dated 17 September 2009 and 12
December 2014 respectively. The transactions and the respective
annual caps were approved at special general meetings by the
independent shareholders on 9 October 2009 and 31 December
2014 respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014

BE_E-—NE+-A=1+—-HLEFE

i) Name of
connected parties

BEALER

Nature of transactions

REME

HK$'000
BT T

Cap amount
approved by
the independent
shareholders

BEIRR
HIEN SR LR
HK$'000
BT

1) The Kowloon Motor Bus
Company (1933) Limited
("KMB") (Note 1)
NEEE (==
BRAB(TAE]D
(BFFE1)

Licence fee payable by RoadShow Media
Limited (“RoadShow Media”) (Note 2)
to KMB in relation to the grant of a
licence by KMB for soliciting advertising
business in respect of the interior panels
of the bus body of the KMB buses for
the period from 1 January 2014 to 31
October 2014

RoadShow Media Limited ([RoadShow
Medial) (lFZF2) N EBREEER T —NF
—A—RAE-Z—NWFt+tA=+—HHER
EELtERABESMETES EBNSTE
mABE ST &

10,833

52,000

2) KMB
ME

Licence fee payable by Bus Power Limited
("Bus Power”) (Note 3) to KMB in relation
to the grant of a licence by KMB for the
exclusive right to market, display and
maintain advertisements at the exterior
panels of the bodies of the KMB buses
for the period from 1 January 2014 to 31
October 2014 and licence fee payable
by Bus Power to KMB in relation to the
grant of an exclusive licence by KMB to
Bus Power to market, install, display and
maintain advertisements on or at such parts
of exterior and interior areas and spaces of
the KMB buses on which Bus Power may
display advertisements for the period from
1 November 2014 to 31 December 2014

Bus Power Limited ([Bus Power]) (Ff&E 3) 5t /L
EREEEANR _ZT—NF—A—HZE-_Z—NF
TA=T—RHMEEE BRRESEEREY
HNEBEEMNMBREFTEANBI SRHEHE
ERNESHEER S —NE+—F—HZE=
T—NE+—_A=+—BHMEE  BRh#F
EERBE SN RERAZBBus Power A] BN E
EZNERERMNBRETERNE S FTRRFRT
=

70,500

117,000

Notes:

1.

2.
3.

KMB is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Transport International Holdings Limited 1.

("TIH").

RoadShow Media is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

Bus Power is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. 3.

GEE

20145 3

NERFABEBRZERAERAR(EHE ] HEEZEN
BAA -

2. RoadShow Media BARAAIMEEEZENE AT -
Bus Power AAARIKMEZEZENB AR ©

BRAUBIER AR AR
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ii) The Group entered into the transactions with the connected
parties in 2008 as set out below. The transactions constituted
continuing connected transactions which are subject to
reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’

approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The details of the transactions listed below were disclosed
in the circular of the Company dated 28 November 2008
and were approved at the special general meeting by the
independent shareholders on 15 December 2008.

The following transactions have been extended for the period
from 1 August 2012 to 30 June 2017. The details of the
extended transactions and the respective proposed annual
caps were disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 3 July 2012 and the circular of the Company dated

30 July 2012. The annual caps in respect of the royalty fees
payable, Shortfall receivable, the management fees payable
and the sales rebate payable are subject to the reporting,
announcement and independent Shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
transactions and the respective proposed annual caps were
approved at the special general meeting by the independent
shareholders on 15 August 2012.

RoadShow Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2014
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-Z-—NFE+-A=+—-HLFE

ii) Name of Nature of transactions HK$'000 Cap amount
connected parties XEME ST T approved by
BEEALTER the independent

shareholders
KEIIRR
HEN SR LR
HK$'000
BET T

3) KMB Royalty fee payable by Bus Focus Limited 23,997 24,000
=) (“Bus Focus”) (Note 4) to KMB in connection

with the provision of media sales services
for panels installed at transit vehicle shelters
owned by KMB

Bus Focus Limited ([Bus Focus])(Kizt4) 5t
ANERENTESERHEE = IRHEEHEER
BRANBXSHEFRE

4) JCDecaux Cityscape Limited Management fee payable by Bus Focus to 26,985 27,200
("JCDecaux Cityscape”) JCDecaux Cityscape in connection with the
(Note 5) provision of media sales services for transit
EEREERAA vehicle shelters owned by KMB

(IEmRE]) (MFE5)
Bus Focus S ANE AN FESERHESEZRHE
HREERSENEaSRESTHNERS

5) JCDecaux Cityscape Sales rebate payable by Bus Focus to 1,931 7,800
mERE JCDecaux Cityscape in connection with the
provision of media sales services for transit
vehicle shelters owned by KMB

Bus Focus A NEHEANFEEMIEE =M
HREHERBARNRBSRE S THIHEDH

6) JCDecaux Cityscape Shortfall of guarantee rental receivable by — 21,000
ERREE Bus Focus in connection with the provision
of media sales services for transit vehicle
shelters owned by KMB

Bus Focus BNE#HBRNKESERIRE =HRMELE
BIHERENERRERSHTEE

Notes: FiEr -

4. Bus Focus is an indirect 60%-owned subsidiary of the Company and a direct 4. Bus Focus RAARAIEERES 60%E=HINE LR
40%-owned associate of Immense Prestige Limited (“IPL"). IPL is a wholly-owned 7 B Almmense Prestige Limited ([IPL)) E## &
subsidiary of JCDecaux Cityscape Hong Kong Limited 40% 1 % #) B & 2 7 © IPL/3 JCDecaux Cityscape
("JCDecaux CHK"). Hong Kong Limited ([ JCDecaux CHK])#)Z &M E

o

5. =R AJCDecaux CHKHIZEWB AT -

5. JCDecaux Cityscape is a wholly-owned subsidiary of JCDecaux CHK.
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iii) The Group entered into the transaction with the connected

party in 2007 as set out below. The transaction constituted a
continuing connected transaction which is subject to reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The details
of the transaction listed below were disclosed in the circular of
the Company dated 21 November 2007 and were approved at
the special general meeting by the independent shareholders on
10 December 2007. The details of the annual caps in respect of
the licence fee and service charges payable by RoadShow Media
under the following transaction for the three years ended 31
December 2010, 2011 and 2012 were disclosed in the circular of
the Company dated 17 September 2009 and were approved at
the special general meeting by the independent shareholders on
9 October 2009.

The following transaction has been extended for the period from
1 August 2012 to 30 June 2017. The details of the extended
transaction and the proposed annual caps were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 16 March 2012 and the
circular of the Company dated 18 April 2012. The transaction
and the proposed annual caps in respect of the licence fee and
service charges payable by RoadShow Media under the following
transaction for the five years ending 31 December 2013, 2014,
2015, 2016 and 2017 were approved by the independent
shareholders on 14 May 2012.

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BEZE-NF+ZA=+—-HLFE

iii)

REER-—TTLFHEEAT#ET T
X5 BBELEMBRRE4AE - 2R D
BRFERERS  WAEETHE  2F
RBMRRIENIRTE - TR SHFE
ERAREIRZEETLF+—A=+—H
FEOmBRAEE TR _STLF+=
ATHEHRBREIAS EEBREL
JE ° RoadShow Media#t TH|EE -
—ZF B —FRIT-_F+_H
=t —ALFEAXNNFTERREE
MEELROFBERARARRZZEEN
FNATEBHENBRAER TR
ZEENFTANBRBREFIAE LER
SRR BEAE o

NTRSGEEBZZE—ZFN\A—RAERE
—E—+FRA=1+H -EERXRHRKIE

AEZFELRNOFBEERAQRRE
—ZF=A+T R BHEHAMH - UAERAR
ARZZ——FMA+N\BFIENBRIA
WHE o %X 5 N RoadShow Media it T
JIME_ZT—=F - —T—0WF .- =%

—RF ZE-REERZZE—tF+=A
=T HALREFENRSHEX MO
BLRRBENEZFELRER S —Z=
FRATHBEE L REIE -

iii) Name of Nature of transaction HK$'000 Cap amount
connected party XEME SEME T T approved by
BB A T+ 2B the independent

shareholders
BBIIRER
HERNSEE LR
HK$'000
BT T

7) KMB Licence fee, service charges and rental 21,066 46,000
I expenses payable by RoadShow Media to

KMB in connection with the granting of
an exclusive licence to conduct BUS-TV
Advertising on KMB's transit vehicles fitted

with the MMOB broadcasting system

RoadShow Media SiERBR G EEREERE
ZEBEREASFNNERERH LETELTER
BEEXBAMNNEBIFNEHE  REEEES
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Independent Non-Executive Directors have reviewed and confirmed
that the continuing connected transactions as set out in (i), (i) and
(i) above, which were entered into by the Group, are:

* in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

* on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable than
terms available to or from (as appropriate) independent third
parties; and

® in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditors were engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong

Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditors have issued their unqualified
letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions set out above in accordance
with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditors’ letter
has been provided by the Company to The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

Use of Proceeds

Since the listing of RoadShow on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited, the Group has utilised approximately HK$453.7
million for the development of, and the purchase of equipment
for use in, the BUS-TV and other advertising business and for the
acquisition of complementary businesses in Mainland China. The
balance of the proceeds, which has not been utilised, has been
deposited with licensed banks in Hong Kong.

Corporate Governance

Over the years, the Group has placed strong emphasis on
maintaining high standards of corporate governance and believes
good corporate governance provides a solid and sound framework
to assist the Directors in fulfilling their duties and responsibilities
to the Group. The Group's standards of corporate governance
ensure that the Group’s corporate decision-making process,
internal controls, disclosure of information and communication with
shareholders are conducted in accordance with sound management
practices and in full compliance with the regulatory standards. The
Corporate Governance Report of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2014 is set out on pages 43 to 64 of this Annual Report.
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Dr John CHAN Cho Chak
REZEBE LT AFEHL
Chairman &

Aged 71. Dr Chan has been a Non-Executive Director and the Chairman of the
Company since 15 January 2001. He is an Independent Non-Executive Director
and Deputy Chairman of Transport International Holdings Limited (“TIH").
He previously served as Managing Director of TIH and as Managing Director
and later Senior Executive Director of The Kowloon Motor Bus Company
(1933) Limited (“KMB”) and Long Win Bus Company Limited. He is also an
Independent Non-Executive Director of Hang Seng Bank Limited, Guangdong
Investment Limited and Swire Properties Limited. Dr Chan held many positions
in the Hong Kong Civil Service from 1964 to 1978 and from 1980 to 1993, the
key ones of which included Private Secretary to the Governor, Deputy Secretary
(General Duties), Director of Information Services, Deputy Chief Secretary,
Secretary for Trade and Industry and Secretary for Education and Manpower. Dr
Chan also served as Executive Director and General Manager of Sun Hung Kai
Finance Company Limited from 1978 to 1980. He was Chairman of the Hong
Kong Jockey Club from 2006 to 2010. Dr Chan is Chairman of the Court of the
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology, a Director of the Community
Chest (Third Vice President and Chairman of its Public Relations Committee and
a Member of its Executive Committee), Chairman and Non-Executive Director
of Hong Kong News-Expo Limited and a Director (Member of the Governing
Body) of The Hong Kong Club Foundation Limited.

Mr YUNG Wing Chung
BKEBFZE
Deputy Chairman gl=/F

Aged 68. Mr Yung has been a Director of the Company since 20 November
2008. He is a Corporate Advisor of Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited. He also
serves as an Alternate Director to Mr Raymond Kwok Ping Luen of Wing Tai
Properties Limited, a Director of YATA Limited, Hong Kong Business Aviation
Centre Limited, River Trade Terminal Co. Ltd., Hung Kai Finance Company
Limited and Airport Freight Forwarding Centre Company Limited. Mr. Yung
was a Non-Executive Director of SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings
Limited, a Non-Executive Director of Wing Tai Properties Limited and an
Alternate Director to Mr Raymond Kwok Ping Luen of Transport International
Holdings Limited. Prior to his joining Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited in
1995, Mr Yung had many years of working experience with a U.S. Bank in
various managerial positions in Hong Kong and the United States.
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Ms Winnie NG
mEEZ L

Founder and Deputy Chairman 8l# A R &I+ /&
BA, MBA (Chicago), MPA (Harvard), FCIM, CMILT, MHKIoD

Aged 51. Ms Ng is the Founder of the Company and has been Director since
its inception. She is also a Director of Transport International Holdings Limited,
The Kowloon Motor Bus Company (1933) Limited and Long Win Bus Company
Limited. Ms Ng has received numerous awards and recognition. In 2010, she was
named a Woman of Excellence and was also selected as one of 60 Meritorious
Chinese Entrepreneurs with Achievement and National Contribution. In previous
years, she won the Yazhou Zhoukan Young Chinese Entrepreneur Award, was
named one of China’s 100 Outstanding Women Entrepreneurs, was Mason Fellow
of Harvard University, and was the Caring Heart Award recipient. She founded
and spearheaded listing of this multi-media company, which business model has
been adopted by many companies in Hong Kong, China and over the world.

Active in public service, Ms Ng serves on a number of public and community
boards. She is Chairman of Hospital Governing Committee of Prince of Wales
Hospital, Chairman of Marketing and Business Development Committee of
Hong Kong Tourism Board, Advisor of Our Hong Kong Foundation, Member of
Hospital Authority, Member of Hong Kong Tourism Board, Court Member of the
Polytechnic University, Director of Vocational Training Council, Council Member
of Better HK Foundation, Vice Chairperson and Director of Friends of Bauhinia,
Public Relations Committee Member of Community Chest. Ms Ng holds an MBA
from University of Chicago and an MPA from Harvard University. She is a Fellow
of the Chartered Institute of Marketing.

Mr Alex MO Tik Sang
FHERE

Managing Director % = 4% 318
FHKIoD

AN

Aged 49. Mr Mo has been a Director of the Company since 15 April 2008. He
has over two decade’s specialist experience in advertising, marketing and media.
During the last nineteen years, Mr Mo has occupied several key management
roles, building up integrated experience in multiple disciplines across the
communications industry. Prior to joining the Group, Mr Mo held a senior position
in a leading media group for Greater China. Mr Mo is a Director of Agency for
Volunteer Service (AVS) and a Member of Fundraising & Promotion Committee
of AVS.
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Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI
HRREELATHL

Aged 67. Dr Tsui has been a Director of the Company since 1 April 2001. A
graduate of the University of Hong Kong, Dr Tsui obtained her Doctorate degree
in Professional Studies from Middlesex University, UK. She is the Chief Executive
Officer of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors. She is also Fellow of The Hong
Kong Institution of Engineers, The Hong Kong Institute of Directors, Hong Kong
Management Association and The British Computer Society, Honorary Fellow of
the Hong Kong Association for Computer Education and Chartered Information
Technology Professional. Dr Tsui is holder of Professional Diploma on Corporate
Governance and Directorship. A Justice of the Peace, Dr Tsui is a Member of
the Communications Authority. She was formerly a Wan Chai District Councillor,
a Councillor of Urban Council and Provisional Urban Council and a Member
of Broadcasting Authority. She is Founding Chairman of Hong Kong Chinese
Orchestra. She is an Independent Non-Executive Director of Polytec Asset
Holdings Limited (0208). She was selected as one of the Ten Outstanding Young
Persons in Hong Kong 1981 and awarded IT Achiever of the Year 1992, Member
of the Most Excellent Order of the British Empire in 1997, Bronze Bauhinia
Star 2003 and the Ken Goulding Award for the most outstanding professional
doctorate of Middlesex University 2007.

Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung
FRE[ L AFHL

.

Aged 61. Dr Li has been a Director of the Company since 16 September
2004. He is the Senior Partner of Li, Tang, Chen & Co., Certified Public
Accountants (Practising) and an Independent Non-Executive Director of
Transport International Holdings Limited, The Kowloon Motor Bus Company
(1933) Limited, Long Win Bus Company Limited, Sun Hung Kai Properties
Limited, SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings Limited, Wong’s International
(Holdings) Limited, Hang Seng Bank Limited and China Resources Enterprise,
Limited. Dr Li was an Independent Non-Executive Director of Bank of
Communications Co., Ltd. Dr Li is a Member of the 12th National Committee
of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, a Member of the
Legislative Council of Hong Kong from 1991 to 2004 and Chairman of its Public
Accounts Committee from 1995 to 2004. He is also a past president of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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RICRHER

P, AR BBS, JP, FHKIoD
-l L

Aged 55. Professor Cheung has been a Director of the Company since 19 January
2009. He is the President and Chair Professor of Public Policy at the Hong Kong
Institute of Education. He also holds Advisory and Adjunct Professorships at
Fudan University and Shanghai Jiao Tong University respectively. He obtained a
BSc from the Chinese University of Hong Kong, PhD in Statistics from Universite
de Paris VI, and PhD in Finance from the University of Strathclyde.

He has served as a project coordinator for the Consumer Council in its
examination of the Hong Kong Banking sector. He was Chairman of Core
Group on Corporate Governance, Pacific Economic Cooperation Council and was
responsible for drafting the PECC’s guidelines on good corporate governance
practice for Asia-Pacific economies. He has provided consultancy services to
the Asian Development Bank, United Nations ESCAP, Securities and Futures
Commission of Hong Kong, Financial Services Bureau, Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong and SG Securities (HK) Ltd.

Professor Cheung is Chairman of the Social Innovation and Entrepreneurship
Development Fund Task Force, the Hong Kong Committee for Pacific Economic
Cooperation (HKCPEC), Nursing and Midwifery Sub-Group of the Steering
Committee on Strategic Review on Healthcare Manpower Planning and
Professional Development and the Supervisory Committee of the Asian Bond
Fund (ABF) Hong Kong Bond Index Fund of the Hong Kong Monetary Authority.
He serves on the Commission on Poverty, Exchange Fund Advisory Committee
(EFAC), Governance Sub-Committee (GSC) of EFAC, Currency Board Sub-
Committee (CBC) of EFAC, Products Advisory Committee of Securities and
Futures Commission (SFC) and Steering Committee on Strategic Review on
Healthcare Manpower Planning and Professional Development. He was awarded
the Bronze Bauhinia Star in 2009, and was appointed as Justice of the Peace in
2007 by the HKSAR Government.

Professor Cheung was Chairman of Consultation Panel of the West Kowloon
Cultural District Authority from 2009 to 2013 and Advisory Committee on
Enhancing Self-Reliance Through District Partnership Programme (ESR) from
2006 to 2012; and Member of Minimum Wage Commission from 2011 to 2013,
Commission on Strategic Development from 2007 to 2012, Independent Police
Complaints Council (IPCC) from 2009 to 2012, Operations Review Committee
and Witness Protection Review Board of Independent Commission Against
Corruption (ICAC) from 2008 to 2013. He also served as an Ex-officio Member
and a Non-official Member of Social Enterprise Advisory Committee from 2010
to 2012 and from 2012 to 2013 respectively. Professor Cheung was a Part-time
Member of Advisory Board of the Central Policy Unit of the HKSAR Government.

Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan Leung

Independent Non-Executive Director B IFHITES
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Dr John YEUNG Hin Chung
GEPELATFHLT

- Independent Non-Executive Director B JE#ITE S

I3, SBS, OBE, JP, FHKloD

Aged 68. Dr Yeung has been a Director of the Company since 31 December
2012. He has been the Managing Director of The Cross Harbour (Holdings)
Limited (“Cross Harbour”) (Stock Code: 0032) since 1 August 2001 and he also
holds directorships in certain other members of the Cross Harbour group. Dr
Yeung holds a doctoral degree in Management. Prior to joining Cross Harbour,
he had held various key management positions in the Government of Hong
Kong, where he last served as the Deputy Director of Immigration; and in the
private sector, where he last worked as the Chief Executive of the Shun Hing
Group. Dr Yeung is a Member of the CUHK Advisory Group on Undergraduate
Studies in Business, the Hong Kong PolyU CPCE Advisory Committee and the
HKU SPACE Foundation Steering Committee. He is also an Honorary Institute
Fellow of CUHK Business School and a Board member of the Hong Kong

Philharmonic Society.

Mr John Anthony MILLER
HERLE

Non-Executive Director 3E#I1TE =
SBS, OBE, MPA (Harvard), BA (London), FHKlIoD

Aged 64. Mr Miller has been a Director of the Company since 20 March
2008. He retired from the Civil Service in February 2007 as Permanent
Representative of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of China to
the World Trade Organization in Geneva. Key positions held over a career
spanning 35 years prior to Mr Miller’s retirement include Permanent Secretary
for Financial Services and the Treasury 2002-2004, Director of Housing and
Chief Executive of the Housing Authority 1996-2002, Director-General of
Trade 1993-1996, Director of Marine 1991-1993, Information Coordinator in
the Chief Secretary’s Office 1989-1991 and Private Secretary to the Governor
1979-1982. Mr Miller is a Non-Executive Director of Transport International
Holdings Limited, The Kowloon Motor Bus Company (1933) Limited and
SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings Limited, and is Chairman of Hong
Kong Business Aviation Centre Limited, a partly-owned subsidiary of Sun Hung
Kai Properties Limited. Mr Miller was a Non-Executive Director of SUNeVision
Holdings Limited for the period from 1 December 2011 to 31 December 2013.
Mr Miller holds an MPA degree from Harvard University and a BA degree from

London University.
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Mr MAK Chun Keung

BIRBEE
Non-Executive Director 3Fi1TE =

Aged 74. Mr Mak has been a Director of the Company since 23 May 2001.
He joined The Kowloon Motor Bus Company (1933) Limited (“KMB") in 1994,
appointed Commercial Director in 2001 and retired in February 2006. He was
Director of KMB's first two joint ventures to operate public bus services in
People’s Republic of China. Mr Mak has over twenty years of experience in

international banking and finance, and has held senior executive positions in

foreign and local banking institutions throughout his career.

Mr Allen FUNG Yuk Lun
EEBLE

Non-Executive Director JE#ITE S
BA, Ph.D.

Aged 46. Mr Fung has been a Director of the Company since 8 July 2014. He
has been an Executive Director of Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited ("SHKP"),
a Deputy Chairman of SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings Limited, a
Vice Chairman of SUNeVision Holdings Limited, a Non-Executive Director of
Transport International Holdings Limited and a Director of certain subsidiaries
of SHKP. He is also a Director of The Kowloon Motor Bus Company (1933)
Limited and Long Win Bus Company Limited. He is a Member of the Executive
Committee of SHKP and the Chief Executive Officer of the SHKP Group’s non-
property related portfolio investments. Mr Fung obtained an undergraduate
degree (Modern History) from Oxford University and holds a doctoral degree in
History and East Asian Languages from Harvard University. He was a recipient of
a Guggenheim Fellowship in 1996. Mr Fung was a Teaching Fellow at Harvard
University from 1993 to 1994 and a visiting Assistant Professor of History at
Brown University from 1996 to 1997.

Mr Fung joined McKinsey & Company (“McKinsey”), a global management
consulting company, in 1997. During his time in McKinsey, he primarily served
clients in China and Hong Kong, and also served institutions in Europe and
Southeast Asia. Mr Fung was the co-leader of the infrastructure practice for
McKinsey. He was the Managing Partner of McKinsey Hong Kong from 2004 to
2010. In 2011, he became a Director of McKinsey globally, being the first Hong
Kong Chinese to become a Director in McKinsey’s history. He was also the head
of recruiting for the Asia region in McKinsey.

Mr Fung is the Chairman of the Hong Kong Society for the Protection of
Children, a Council Member of both The Hong Kong Federation of Youth
Groups and The Hong Kong Management Association, as well as a Member of
the Executive Committee of the Hong Kong Council of Social Service. He is also
an Advisory Member of the Faculty of Business and Economics at The University
of Hong Kong.
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Name Position held in the Group Date of appointment
®E RAEBEERBN ZERH

Dr John CHAN Cho Chak Chairman 15 January 2001
BRAEE T AP L TE —ZET—F—H+EH
GBS, JP

Ms Winnie NG Deputy Chairman 15 January 2001
thA#EgLt BIERE —ZET—F—H+HH
Mr YUNG Wing Chung Deputy Chairman 20 November 2008
BXBFEE BlER —TENFE+—-—HA=1H
Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI Independent Non-Executive Director 1 April 2001
RRRE LR FEt BYFRMITES —ZET-FMA—H
BBS, MBE, JP

Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung
FREBLIRTFELT

GBS, OBE, JP

Independent Non-Executive Director

B IFITES

16 September 2004
—TFEEFNHATAE

Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan Leung
RERFBEKFEL

BBS, JP

Independent Non-Executive Director

BUFHITES

19 January 2009
—“EEAE-ATAE

Dr John YEUNG Hin Chung

Independent Non-Executive Director

31 December 2012

BRETIE LK FEL BYFMITES —E——F+-RA=+—H
SBS, OBE, JP

Mr Alex MO Tik Sang Managing Director 15 April 2008
FaExRE ERprE —ZEZE/\FMA+AHA
Mr MAK Chun Keung Non-Executive Director 23 May 2001
BRBELE FRITES —EE-FRA-1+=H
Mr John Anthony MILLER Non-Executive Director 20 March 2008
HEREL FHITES —EEN\F=A=-TH
SBS, OBE

Mr Allen FUNG Yuk Lun
SRR T

Non-Executive Director

FMITES

8 July 2014
—ZT-WFEELANE

Senior Management BREEAES

Name Position held in the Group Year joined the Group
®A RS BB AR ER 2 F 5

Mr Alex MO Tik Sang Managing Director April 2008

ES G EEAKIE —ZEZN\FHA

Mr Thomas LO Sui Sing Chief Operating Officer September 2008
EImaR e E EIBBEE —EENFNA

Mr Lawrence CHAN Kwan Chief Financial Officer September 2014
R L B R R —E-MFENHA

Mr Simon SIU Kar Chun Chief Marketing and Sales Officer October 2010
BRIREE %5 M 85 & 48 A —E-TF+

RoadShow Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2014



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

The Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the
"Group”) have placed strong emphasis on maintaining high
standards of corporate governance and believe that good
corporate governance provides a solid and sound framework to
assist the Board of Directors (the “Board”) in fulfilling its duties
and responsibilities to the Group and its shareholders. The
Board also believes that good corporate governance practices
are important to protect the interests of our shareholders and to
disseminate the investors’ confidence.

In March 2005, the Board adopted the “RoadShow Code on
Corporate Governance” (the “RoadShow Code”) and the Company
has implemented the RoadShow Code since then. The RoadShow
Code was updated from time to time in accordance with the
amendments to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

Compliance with the Corporate Governance Code

The Company has fully complied with all the code provisions of
the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December 2014.
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Overall Accountability

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are individually
and collectively accountable to the shareholders for the success
and sustainable development of the Company. The Board
provides direction and approval in relation to matters concerning
the Company’s business strategies, policies and plans whilst the
day-to-day business operations are delegated to the Managing
Director and the senior management. The Board is accountable to
the shareholders and in discharging its corporate accountability,
every Director is required to pursue excellence in the interests of
the shareholders and fulfill his or her fiduciary duties by applying
the required level of skills, care and diligence to a standard in
accordance with the statutory requirements.

INEDs

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE INEDs
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Board Composition

The Board is composed of eleven Directors as at 31 December
2014, four of whom are Independent Non-Executive Directors
("INEDs"). As at 31 December 2014, INEDs constitute more than
one-third of the Board. These INEDs bring a wide range of business
and financial experience to the Board, which contributes to the
effective direction of the Group. One of these INEDs possesses
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. The Company has received from
each INED a written confirmation of his or her independence
pursuant to the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and considers that all INEDs are independent.

Details of all Directors, including the Chairman, Executive Director
(the Managing Director), Non-Executive Directors (“NEDs") and
INEDs are set out on pages 36 to 41 of this Annual Report. The
relationships (including financial, business, family or other material
or relevant relationships) among members of the Board are also
disclosed. There is no such relationship between the Chairman and
the Managing Director.

Board Diversity Policy

The Group adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) in August 2013. The Company recognised and embraced
the benefits of having a diverse Board to the quality of its
performance. The Board Diversity Policy aimed to set out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board. In designing the
Board’s composition, Board diversity has been considered based
on a range of perspectives including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will
be considered against objective criteria, having due regard to the
benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of services. The ultimate decision
will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.

The Nomination Committee will review and monitor the

implementation of the Board Diversity Policy from time to time to
ensure its effectiveness.
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Board Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board is responsible for promoting the success of the Group
by directing and supervising its affairs in a responsible and
effective manner. Each director has a duty to act in good faith
and in the best interests of the Company. The types of decisions
that are taken by the Board include those relating to:

e the strategic plans and objectives of the Company;

e the monitoring and controlling of the Group’s operating and
financial performance;

* overseeing the management of relationships with stakeholders,
including shareholders, customers, Government, suppliers,
employees and the community; and

* the assessment and management of risk to which the Group is
exposed.

Day-to-day management of the business of the Company is
delegated to the Managing Director or the officer in charge who
is required to report back to the Board.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal action against the Directors and officers.

Details of the responsibilities, membership, attendance and
activities of each Board Committee during the year are set out on
pages 49 to 55 of this Annual Report.

Board Meetings and Attendance

The Board met regularly throughout the year to discuss the overall
strategy as well as the operational and financial performance of the
Group. All Directors are kept informed on a timely basis of major
changes that may affect the Group’s businesses, including relevant
rules and regulations. Written procedures are also in place for
Directors to seek independent professional advice in performing
their Directors’ duties at the Company’s expense. No request was
made by any Director for such independent professional advice in
2014. During the year, the Chairman of the Company has held a
meeting with the NEDs (including the INEDs) without the presence
of the Executive Director.
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Five Board meetings were held during 2014. The attendance records RZ-Z—NFRITTANEELLH - SEF

of each Director at Board meetings in 2014 are set out below: R-B-MFRTHNEFEEH DL FELEHT
mr

Attendance of individual Directors at Board meetings in 2014
BRESN-_Z-NFETHNESSZRNHERER

Meetings Attended/Held
FritfE BITER

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

BYFHUTES !

Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI

REEIEL 5/5

Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung

FREB L 5/5

Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan Leung

R HIE >/3

Dr John YEUNG Hin Chung

BEPEL 5/5

Non-Executive Directors:

FHITES :

Dr John CHAN Cho Chak (Chairman)

BRADEE L (LE) 5/5

Ms Winnie NG (Deputy Chairman)

thBEgL L (8XE) 5/5

Mr YUNG Wing Chung (Deputy Chairman)

BXBEE(FERE) >

Mr MAK Chun Keung

YR 5 >/5

Mr John Anthony MILLER

4 £ 5 A >/5

Mr Edmond HO Tat Man (resigned as a Director with effect from 8 July 2014)

ekt (Bt )\ AR EEE) 2/3

Mr Allen FUNG Yuk Lun (appointed as a Director with effect from 8 July 2014)

EEBEA (H—F—WEFF )\ HEESEAEE) 2/2

Executive Director:

BITES :

Mr Alex MO Tik Sang

A >/3
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Appointment of Directors

The Company follows formal procedures for the appointment of
new Directors. Appointments are first considered by the Nomination
Committee. The nomination is then submitted to the Board

for decision with reference to criteria that include professional
knowledge and industrial experience, personal ethics, integrity and
personal skills, and the time commitments of the candidates. Any
Director so appointed by the Board shall hold office only until the
next following annual general meeting after his or her appointment
and shall then be eligible for re-election at that meeting.

All NEDs are appointed for a term of not more than three years. All
Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
Company’s annual general meeting at least once every three years.

Chairman and Managing Director

In order to reinforce independence, accountability and
responsibility, the positions of the Chairman and the Managing
Director are held separately by Dr John CHAN Cho Chak and Mr
Alex MO Tik Sang respectively. The Chairman is responsible for
ensuring that the Board is functioning properly with good corporate
governance practices and procedures, whilst the Managing Director
is responsible for managing the Group’s businesses in a manner
consistent with the Group'’s standards and in accordance with
specific plans, instructions or directions of the Board.

Directors’ Induction and Training

Each newly appointed Director is provided with necessary
induction and information to ensure that he or she has a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and businesses as well
as his or her responsibilities under the relevant statutes, laws, rules
and regulations.

Directors’ training is an ongoing process. During the year, Directors
are provided with monthly updates on the Company’s performance,
position and prospects to enable the Board as a whole and each
Director to discharge their duties. In addition, all Directors are
encouraged to participate in continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company
updates Directors on the latest development regarding the Listing
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements from time to
time, to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good
corporate governance practices.
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According to the records provided by the Directors, a summary of
trainings received by the Directors for the year ended 31 December
2014 is as follows:

REBEEFRENDYE  ESRNEE_T—NF
TZA=T-HLEFEEEXNEINEN
T

Type of Trainings
EIER

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

BYFHTES :

Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI
REEREL

Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung
FREFEL

Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan Leung
RIERBIX

Dr John YEUNG Hin Chung
BEPEL

Non-Executive Directors:

FHITES

Dr John CHAN Cho Chak (Chairman)
PRABZEE L (F/E)

Ms Winnie NG (Deputy Chairman)
hABRZ L (BEE)

Mr YUNG Wing Chung (Deputy Chairman)
BKBFEE(BERE)

Mr MAK Chun Keung
EIRE 4

Mr John Anthony MILLER
EE2:biv:a

Mr Edmond HO Tat Man (resigned as a Director with effect from 8 July 2014)

MEXEE (B-F-—WFLAN\AEFHEEF)

Mr Allen FUNG Yuk Lun (appointed as a Director with effect from 8 July 2014)

HEBEE (B-F—WNFLtA\AERZEIREF)

Executive Director:

HITES .

Mr Alex MO Tik Sang
EmAERE

Notes:

A. Reading materials and updates on various topics, including corporate
governance matters and directors’ duties and responsibilities

B. Attending seminars and/or conferences and/or forums and/or briefings
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Company Secretary

The Company Secretary supports the Chairman, the Board and the
Board Committees by ensuring good information flow and that
Board policy and procedures are followed. She advises the Board
on governance matters and facilitates the induction and professional
development of Directors. The Company Secretary is an employee
of the Company and is appointed by the Board. Although the
Company Secretary reports to the Chairman and Managing Director,
all Directors may call upon her for advice and assistance at any

time in respect of their duties and the effective operation of the
Board and Board Committees. The Company Secretary also plays
an essential role in the relationship between the Company and

its shareholders, including assisting the Board in discharging its
obligations to shareholders pursuant to the Listing Rules.

During the year, Ms Jo MAN Miu Sheung resigned and Ms Christine
MAK Lai Hung has been appointed as the Company Secretary of the
Company with effect from 16 December 2014. Both Ms MAN and
Ms MAK have complied with the training requirements of the Listing
Rules during the year ended 31 December 2014.

BOARD COMMITTEES

In order to oversee various aspects of the Company’s affairs, the

Board has established various Board Committees. The majority of
the members of the Board Committees are either INEDs or NEDs.
Each of the Board Committees has its specific terms of reference.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee was established on 12 September 2001.
The Committee currently comprises three NEDs and an Executive
Director.

The Executive Committee meets regularly throughout the year
and on an ad hoc basis if necessary to review business operations,
financial operations and ad hoc projects of the Group. These
projects include major acquisitions, investments and their funding
requirements.
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During 2014, the Executive Committee held five meetings. The
attendance records of the members of the Executive Committee in
2014 are summarised below:

R-F—MF TRZEGRITTHREH -
THZEEGRERN - T —MFH B E L
W

Attendance of individual members at Executive Committee meetings in 2014

ERER-F-NFETHNTHRZEESEERNHERR

Meetings Attended/Held

FriifE S BiTEE
Non-Executive Directors:
FHITES :
Mr John Anthony MILLER (chairman) 5/5
HBREE(EE)
Dr John CHAN Cho Chak (deputy chairman) 5/5
PRAEE L (FEE)
Mr Edmond HO Tat Man (resigned as an Executive Committee member with effect from 8 July 2014) 2/2
MEXEE (B-F—WFtANBEFEFTREZREEKE)
Mr Allen FUNG Yuk Lun (appointed as an Executive Committee member with effect from 8 July 2014) 2/3
HBEBEE (BT —WFLAN\AERZERTREEEMKE)
Executive Director:
HITES :
Mr Alex MO Tik Sang 5/5
eSS e

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 11 April 2001. The
Committee currently comprises three INEDs and two NEDs. The
Managing Director is required to attend each Audit Committee
meeting as requested by the members of the Committee. After each
meeting, the Audit Committee reports to the Board on significant
issues. As at the date of this Annual Report, the members of the
Audit Committee are Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung (chairman), Dr Carlye
Wai-Ling TSUI, Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan Leung, Ms Winnie
NG and Mr YUNG Wing Chung.

The Audit Committee is to assist the Board in fulfilling its
responsibilities relating to accounting and reporting practices, to
improve the credibility and objectivity of the Company’s financial
and other reports, and to strengthen the system of internal
control, risk management and compliance with applicable laws
and regulations. The full terms of reference are available on

the Company’s website (www.roadshow.com.hk) and the Stock
Exchange's website.
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During 2014, the Audit Committee held three meetings. The Audit
Committee reviewed the following documents and matters in the
meetings:

e the Company’s Report of the Directors, Independent
Auditor’s Report and Financial Statements for the year
ended 31 December 2013 and 2013 Annual Report, with a
recommendation to the Board for approval;

e the Company’s Interim Financial Report for the six months
ended 30 June 2014 and Interim Report 2014, with a
recommendation to the Board for approval;

* the Company’s accounting policies and its compliance with the
prevailing accounting standards of Hong Kong;

* the audit plan of the External Auditors for the year ended 31
December 2014, including the extent of coordination between
the Audit Committee and the auditors;

e the results of the external audits;

e the fees payable to the External Auditors of the interim review
for the six months ended 30 June 2014 and of the audit for
the year ended 31 December 2014, and terms of engagement
of the External Auditors for approval by the Board;

* the results of the 2013 and 2014 internal audits performed by
an outsourced independent professional firm (the “Internal
Auditors”);

* the proposed internal audit plan for the financial year 2014
of the Internal Auditors including the extent of co-ordination
between the Audit Committee and the Internal Auditors;

e the effectiveness of the system of internal control of the
Group;

e the Enterprise-wide Risk Assessment performed by Internal
Auditors;

* Advisory on revenue recognition performed by Internal
Auditors; and

* the compliance by the Company with all applicable laws,
regulations, standards and best practice guidelines.

The Audit Committee Chairman and other Committee members also
met in separate private session with the external auditors at least
once during the year.
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The Audit Committee held three meetings in 2014. The attendance
records of the members of the Audit Committee in 2014 are
summarised below:

BERZEEN_TMFERITTZRGH - BX
ZEERER_F-NFEMHFELSEEMT

Attendance of individual members at Audit Committee meetings in 2014

ERER-F-NFETHNERZESERNHERER

Meetings Attended/Held

FrHifE BiTEE

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
BUFIITES
Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung (chairman) 3/3
FREFL(EF)
Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI 3/3
RETEL
Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan Leung 3/3
RERHIR
Non-Executive Directors:
FHITES
Ms Winnie NG 3/3
thiatezz+
Mr YUNG Wing Chung 3/3
BKBFEE

Remuneration Committee FMZEES

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 23 ARBAR_FTMF=A-T=ARIHFME

March 2004. The Committee currently comprises two INEDs and

a NED. As at the date of this Annual Report, the members of the
Remuneration Committee are Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI (chairman),
Mr YUNG Wing Chung and Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan Leung.

The Remuneration Committee is intended to define and articulate
a compensation philosophy or strategy consistent with the
strategic objectives of the Company. To achieve this objective, the
Remuneration Committee formulates policies on and reviews the
remuneration of the Company’s Directors and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee has adopted the model that it will
review the proposals made by the management on the remuneration
packages of the Executive Director and senior management, and
make recommendations to the Board. The Board will have final
authority to approve the recommendations made by the
Remuneration Committee.
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The full terms of reference are available on the Company’s website
(www.roadshow.com.hk) and the Stock Exchange’s website.

The principal elements of the Company’s remuneration policy for
Directors and senior management are:

¢ no individual should determine his or her own remuneration
package;

* remuneration packages should be on a par with companies
with whom the Company competes for human resources;

e the Company should aim at designing remuneration packages
that attract and retain executives needed to run the Group
successfully and motivate executives to pursue appropriate
growth strategies whilst it should avoid paying an excessive
amount for such purposes;

° remuneration packages should reflect the performance and
responsibility of an individual, as well as the complexity of
work; and

* remuneration packages should be structured in such a way that
they provide incentives to Directors and senior management to
improve their individual performance.

In 2014, the Remuneration Committee:

* reviewed the remuneration packages of senior management;

* reviewed the remuneration package and the target bonus
proposal of the Managing Director and made recommendation
to the Board; and

* reviewed the Directors’ fees proposal and made recommendation
to the Board.
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The Remuneration Committee held one meeting in 2014. The %ﬁ@ﬂ@?g’@ *2 @iﬁiﬁT IREGF ©
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attendance records of the members of the Remuneration Committee
in 2014 are summarised below: —F :

Attendance of individual members at Remuneration Committee meeting in 2014

ERER-ZF-NFETHNFHNEESERNHEERR

Meetings Attended/Held

FrifE BiTEE
Independent Non-Executive Directors:
BYFHTES
Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI (chairman) 1/1
HRRB L (ER)
Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan Leung 1/1
RICRHHE
Non-Executive Director:
FHITES :
Mr YUNG Wing Chung 11
BKBFEE
Nomination Committee REZEES
The Company established the Nomination Committee on 8 March AARIR-_ZEZREF=ANBKIREEE
2006. The Committee currently comprises two INEDs and a NED. As &€ - ZE 2 HAHMBBULIENTES R —F
at the date of this Annual Report, the members of the Nomination FERTERMEN c RAFHAH REZES
Committee are Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan Leung (chairman), REBERCREIR(XE) BEHEBELLR
Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI and Mr YUNG Wing Chung. KEFTE -
The principal functions of the Nomination Committee include: RAZRENIRMABRE

o TEHRNEZFSRRE  RENKE(RER
- BN &R  YREEGHMIEMEZZ

* reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board on a regular

basis and making recommendations to the Board regarding EMEHJI@

any proposed changes; o VEBAEAERRAESEMENERIA
e identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board T WHERERE AL HEERBB A

members, and selecting or making recommendations to LRESRERLES

the Board.on the selection of individuals nominated for . BTN TEENBEIM B
directorships;
e MEFERZALIENZEAEZREEN

BEAB(LERIRERERAEIE)AH

* assessing the independence of INEDs; and

e making recommendations to the Board on relevant matters EEIRH RS -
relating to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors
and succession planning for Directors, in particular the BUEHE 2 XA R B
Chairman and the Managing Director. (www.roadshow.com.hk) K5 22 Fré8ut & 59 o

The full terms of reference are available on the Company’s website
(www.roadshow.com.hk) and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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In 2014, the Nomination Committee: RIZE—NF  RREZEL:

* reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board and * MHNEFERE ARKKER IWES

made recommendations to the Board; SIRHER
e reviewed the independence of INEDs; o RIWBIUIFNTESNEILIL

* made recommendations to the Board about the retirement and o« sreEpALTEEREAEAS FHE
re-appointment of Directors by rotation at the forthcoming EARSREEMEEeE @S

annual general meeting of the Company; and

° RINEFEZLLUIMNEFTSRLES -

e reviewed the Board diversity and made recommendations to

the Board. BEAZEGN T —NERTT—REE - 12

The Nomination Committee held one meeting in 2014. The
attendance records of the members of the Nomination Committee
in 2014 are summarised below:

T

Attendance of individual members at Nomination Committee meeting in 2014

ERER-ZE-NFETHREZESGEENHERER

REEGNER T —MENHECHEM N

Meetings Attended/Held

i EiTEs
Independent Non-Executive Directors:
BYFHTES
Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan Leung (chairman) 11
RER#ER (£7)
Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI 11
RRREL
Non-Executive Director:
FHITES :
Mr YUNG Wing Chung 11
BXBEE

201454 BABEERARAR
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the Group’s
financial statements for each financial year or period that give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results
and cash flows for that year or period. In preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2014, the Directors

have:

* selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently;

* made judgments and estimates that are prudent and reasonable;
and

* prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
Group's financial statements. This responsibility extends to annual
and interim reports, “price-sensitive” or “inside information”
announcements and other financial disclosures required under

the Listing Rules, as well as reports to regulators and information
required to be disclosed pursuant to statutory requirements. The
responsibility of the External Auditors for the audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2014
is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 73 to 74 of
this Annual Report.

Auditors’ Remuneration

In line with the sound practice that the independence of External
Auditors should not be impaired by other non-audit assignments,
the Group ensures that assignments other than statutory audits
undertaken by External Auditors should not have an adverse impact
on their independence. The External Auditors are also required to
review their relationship with the Group and furnish confirmation to

the Audit Committee confirming their independent status.
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During 2014, the External Auditors (including any entity under
common control, ownership or management with the External
Auditors or any entity that a reasonable and informed third party

having knowledge of all relevant information would reasonably

RZ-T— 4 - SN BED (B RA T RINEZ
BENS R — BT - HAREE - HEEM
BHEBAERNE=F AN E A% RH
A ER AT 2B BEIRR D A EE) SR RER

conclude as part of the audit firm nationally or internationally) HEZIEEZRS - FHEHINOT :
provided the following audit and non-audit services to the Group.
Details are set out below:
2014 2013
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Audit
2,219,000 2,125,000
iz
Non-audit services (Note)
BB (i) 063,000 >12,000
Note: MisE -

Non-audit services for both years mainly consisted of the reviews of the Group's
interim financial reports and the performance of certain agreed-upon procedures.

An independence confirmation has been obtained from the External
Auditors confirming that for the year ended 31 December 2014 and
thereafter to the date of this Annual Report, the External Auditors
are independent of the Group in accordance with the independence
requirements of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants.

Internal Control

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate system of
internal controls and reviewing its effectiveness through the Audit
Committee. The Board and the Audit Committee have decided to
outsource the review of the internal controls function to the Internal
Auditors and the Board has delegated to the management the
implementation of such system of internal controls as well as the
review of relevant financial, operational and compliance controls and

risk management procedures.

Control Environment

The review of the internal control functions by the Internal
Auditors was based on the “COSQ" framework (the internal
control framework developed by the Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations of the Treadway Commission).

MERNFEZRBEZORET R B RENEHREE
P EAT ©

BEEESHMAGNBLMSRT  ~EER
BREMNEZBMAEANBE_T—NF+_H
ST RALEFERERBEAFHA BB
RSB RRE - BRIMNSZEE B
URAREH o

EXCARAREANAIERSE Y3
%’fﬁ%%@ﬁﬂﬁ%xﬁl §$A&$V§FE\%
SRTE [ P BB e BREM M 7 B BE 4 B A

T’E MEFSCREE EE/\E\%E?TEZ:W*B
EEHE R ARNE  BERSREHSE
HARRBRERRZRF
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The expectations of the Company regarding duty and integrity

are clearly stated in the Company’s Code of Conduct and Staff
Handbook, as well as the policies and procedures manuals, which
set out the rules and policies, for the Directors and employees to
follow. These cover all aspects of administrative and operational
activities, including relationships with customers, suppliers,
competitors and fellow staffs. The internal control system covers
every activity and transaction of the Group in RoadShow. The
system is based on clear stewardship responsibilities, authorities and
accountability. Our employees are an important part of our internal
system and the Group expects them to contribute to that system. In
addition to setting our guidelines, principles and values, the Group
recognises that an environment where employees feel free to bring
problems to management is also necessary to make our internal

control system successful.

Control Processes

Since 2004, the management and employees, assisted by the
Internal Auditors with particular professional experience in assessing
risks and control procedures, have evaluated the Company’s

control environment, conducted risk assessments of businesses and
processes, and documented those processes that are critical to the
Group's performance.

Qualified personnel throughout the Group maintain and monitor the
system of controls on an ongoing basis and the Managing Director
and Chief Financial Officer have to report any significant changes,
deficiencies and material weaknesses in, and fraud related to,

internal controls to the Audit Committee and the Internal Auditors.

Control Effectiveness

In accordance with the internal audit plan designed by the

Internal Auditors and agreed by the Audit Committee, the Internal
Auditors update and review the Company’s internal control system
every year in such a way that the update and review of all the
major components of the internal control system are completed
within a period of three years. The Internal Auditors provide
recommendations to management to improve internal controls after

each review for management and Audit Committee’s consideration.
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During 2014, the Internal Auditors reviewed the processes and
procedures for compliance with relevant policies and procedures of

the Company. The scope covered the following processes:
e BUS-TV Advertising

+ Sales and marketing

+ Billing, credit controls and receipt handling

e BUS-BODY and IN-BUS Advertising

+ Sales and marketing
+ Billing, credit controls and receipt handling

e Billboard Advertising business
+ Billboard bidding (include public tendering)

+ Sales and marketing
+ Operation and contract compliance
+ Billing, credit controls and receipt handling

e Content Integration

+ Content planning and update,

+ Operations and resources management

+ Performance measurement

+ Monitoring and reporting mechanism
* Follow-up of prior year’s Internal Auditors’ findings
e 2014 Human Resources Control Self Assessment

Based on the findings and comments from the Internal Auditors and
Audit Committee, the Board considered the internal control system
effective and adequate for the year ended 31 December 2014.

No significant areas of concern that might affect the Company’s
shareholders were identified.
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Business Ethics

Code of Conduct

The Group’s Code of Conduct for Directors and Employees (the
“"Code of Conduct”) has long been established to ensure that

both Directors and employees are kept abreast of and fulfill a set
of defined ethical obligations and appropriate behaviours when
conducting businesses and/or performing their duties. The Code

of Conduct also provides guidance on responsibility to the Group’s
shareholders, customers and the community. Any member in breach
of the Code of Conduct is subject to disciplinary action. The Code
of Conduct is updated from time to time, taking into account

changes in the relevant legislation and the business environment.

A set of Code of Conduct can be accessed through the Company’s
intranet and the Company’s website.

Price-sensitive/inside information

With respect to procedures and internal controls for handling and

dissemination of price-sensitive/inside information, the Company

e is aware of its obligations under the Listing Rules and Part XIVA
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance that information that is
expected to be price sensitive or inside information should be

disclosed as soon as reasonably practicable;

e conducts its affairs with close regard to the “Guidelines on
Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by the Securities and
Futures Commission in 2012;

* has included in its Code of Conduct a strict prohibition on the

unauthorised use of confidential or inside information; and

* has established and implemented procedures for responding to
external enquiries about the Group’s affairs. Senior staff of the
Group are identified and authorised to act as the Company’s
spokespersons and respond to enquiries in allocated areas of

issues.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted its own Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors (the “Securities Code”) on terms no less exacting than
the required standard of the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of the Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules. Following specific enquiry by the Company, all
Directors have confirmed that they fully complied with the Securities
Code throughout the year 2014.
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Details of Directors’ interests in the shares of the Company are set
out in the Report of the Directors on pages 68 to 69 of this Annual
Report.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company considers effective communication with shareholders
is essential to enable them to have a clear assessment of the

Group's performance as well as accountability of the Board. Major
means of communication with shareholders of the Company are as

follows:

Information Disclosure on Corporate Website

The Company endeavours to disclose all material information

about the Group to all interested parties on a timely basis. The
Company maintains a corporate website (www.roadshow.com.hk)
where important corporate information and other relevant financial
and non-financial information such as annual reports and interim
reports to shareholders, notices and announcements, circulars and
other information are available for review by shareholders and other

stakeholders.

General Meetings with Shareholders

The Company'’s annual general meeting and special general meetings
provide a useful platform for direct communication between the
Board and shareholders. Separate resolutions are proposed on each

substantially separate issue at the general meetings.

In accordance with the Listing Rules, the Company would arrange for
the notice to shareholders to be sent in the case of annual general
meetings at least 20 clear business days before the meeting and

to be sent at least 10 clear business days before in the case of all
other meetings. Under the Bye-laws of the Company, all shareholders
have 21 clear days’ notice of the Annual General Meeting ("AGM")
and Special General Meeting ("SGM") for the passing of a special
resolution, and 14 clear days’ notice of all other general meetings

at which the Directors and Committee chairmen or members are
available to answer their questions. A representative (usually the
engagement partner) of the External Auditors also attends the AGM
and will take questions from shareholders relating their audit of the

Company’s financial statements.

The 2014 AGM was held on 15 May 2014. One SGM was also held
during the year. The attendance records of the Directors at the

general meetings in 2014 are set out below:
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Attendance of individual Directors at general meetings in 2014

BREER-_Z-NFETHRRAENHESR

AGM Attended/Held

SGM Attended/Held

FrEifE, BITIRER FrifE, BITIRER
HERE RIS

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
BFEHTES :
Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI
HRBEL E o/
Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung
SRMEM L E o/
Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan Leung 11 1/1
R RHIE
Dr John YEUNG Hin Chung
BT 1 1
Non-Executive Directors:
FHITES !
Dr John CHAN Cho Chak (Chairman) 11 11
PRAB RIS (/)
Ms Winnie NG (Deputy Chairman) 11 11
hEeZ T (8EE)
Mr YUNG Wing Chung (Deputy Chairman) 11 11
AKBEE(FIERE)
Mr MAK Chun Keung
BEIR R 5 1 1
Mr John Anth MILLER
E‘é;%;ﬁ” ony 1/1 1/1
Mr Edmond HO Tat Man N/A
(resigned as a Director with effect from 8 July 2014) 1/1 A
ENEE (BT —WHFEAN\AEFEESE)
Mr Allen FUNG Yuk Lun N/A
(appointed as a Director with effect from 8 July 2014) T A 0/1
BEBEE (BT —HWHFELANAEEZERESE)
Executive Director:
BITEE
E/I:Erglie;al\éO Tik Sang 11 171
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Voting by Poll

Resolutions put to vote at the general meetings of the Company
(other than on procedural and administrative matters) are taken by
poll. The results of any voting by poll are announced and published
as soon as possible, but in any event no later than 30 minutes
before the earlier of the commencement of the morning trading
session or any pre-opening session on the business day following
the meeting, on the Stock Exchange’s and the Company’s websites
together with details of the meeting, including the time and venue

and major resolutions.

Shareholders’ Rights

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the shareholders of
the Company as required to be disclosed pursuant to the mandatory
disclosure requirement under Paragraph O of the Corporate

Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules:

Convening of special general meeting on requisition by
shareholders

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, shareholders holding at
the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of

the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right,
by written requisition to the Board of the Company to convene a
SGM for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition.
The request must be in written form with the purpose of the
meeting stated therein, duly signed by the shareholders concerned
and deposited at our Hong Kong principal office at 9 Po Lun Street,
Lai Chi Kok, Kowloon, Hong Kong for the attention of the Company
Secretary. Upon receipt of the confirmation by the Company’s Share
Registrars that the request is valid, the Company Secretary will
arrange to convene a SGM by serving sufficient notice in accordance
with the Company’s Bye-laws and the statutory requirements to all

the registered shareholders.
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Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meetings by shareholders

Shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth of the total voting
rights of those shareholders having the right to vote at the general
meetings may submit a written request to move a resolution at
general meetings. The procedures for putting forward proposals at
general meetings (including nominating a person for election as a
Director) are set out in the Company’s Shareholders” Communication
Policy, which is available on the website of the Company

(www.roadshow.com.hk).

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the
Board

Enquires may be put to the Board by contacting either the Company
Secretary through (852) 2746 5200 or e-mail at cosec@roadshow.com.hk
or directly by questions at an AGM or SGM. Questions on the
procedure for convening or putting forward proposals at an AGM or

SGM may also be put to the Company Secretary at the same means.

Constitutional Documents

During 2014, the Board confirmed that there were no significant
changes made in the Company’s Bye-laws.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EZEHE

The directors of RoadShow Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) (the “Directors”) submit herewith their annual
report together with the audited financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2014.

Principal place of business

The Company is a company incorporated in Bermuda and
has its registered office at Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM11,
business at 9 Po Lun Street, Lai Chi Kok, Kowloon, Hong

Bermuda and principal place of
Kong.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to
as the "Group”) are principally engaged in the provision
of media sales and design services and production of
advertisements for Multi-media On-board ("MMOB” or
“BUS-TV"), transit vehicle exteriors (“BUS-BODY") and
interiors (“IN-BUS"), online portal, mobile apps, shelters and
outdoor signages advertising businesses. The Group is also
engaged in the provision of integrated marketing services

covering these advertising platforms.

The principal activities and other particulars of the
Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 16 to the
financial statements. The analysis of the principal activities
and geographical locations of the operations of the Group
during the financial year are set out in note 2 to the financial
statements.

Financial statements

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2014 and the state of the Company’s and the Group's affairs
as at that date are set out in the financial statements on

pages 75 to 149 of this Annual Report.

Dividends

The Directors recommended the payment of a final dividend
of HK3.85 cents per share (2013: HK7.94 cents per share)
and a special dividend of HK4.10 cents per share (2013:
HK Nil cent per share) in respect of the year ended 31
December 2014.
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Fixed assets

Details of movements in fixed assets during the year are set

out in note 13 to the financial statements.

Share capital

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out
in note 25 to the financial statements. There were no

movements during the year.

Transfer to reserves

Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company,
before dividends, of HK$70,587,000 (2013: HK$104,853,000)
has been transferred to reserves. Details of movements in
the reserves of the Group and the Company during the year
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in

equity and note 25 to the financial statements, respectively.

Directors

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of
this report were:

Dr John CHAN Cho Chak*
GBS, JP

Ms Winnie NG*

Mr YUNG Wing Chung®

Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI*
BBS, MBE, JP

Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung*
GBS, OBE, JP

Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan Leung*
BBS, JP

Dr John YEUNG Hin Chung*
SBS, OBE, JP

Mr Alex MO Tik Sang

Mr MAK Chun Keung®

Mr John Anthony MILLER?
SBS, OBE

Mr Edmond HO Tat Man*

Chairman

Deputy Chairman
Deputy Chairman

Managing Director

(Resigned on
8 July 2014)
(Appointed on
8 July 2014)

Mr Allen FUNG Yuk Lun®

Non-Executive Director
*  Independent Non-Executive Director
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Directors (continued)

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-Law 86(2), Mr Allen
FUNG Yuk Lun, who was appointed as a Director on 8 July
2014, will hold office only until the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting and being eligible, has offered himself for
re-election.

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-Law 87 and

Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities

on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”), Dr John CHAN Cho Chak, Ms Winnie NG, Dr Eric LI
Ka Cheung and Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan Leung will
retire from the Board of Directors (the “Board”) by rotation
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming

Annual General Meeting has an unexpired service

contract which is not determinable by the Company or
any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment of
compensation, other than normal statutory obligations.

Directors’ interests and short positions in shares,
underlying shares and debentures

The Directors who held office at 31 December 2014 had the
following interests in the shares of the Company, its holding

companies, subsidiaries and other associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFQO")) at that date as recorded in the register
of directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short

positions required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO:

BEE)

RIEARRRIA A B ARIEE 86(2) 1§ @ B EBETER
“TE-MFELANREZEZARES  HEHEZSR
BRI ZRRBFREAL  BHFAERILFE
B R BAT o

BREARANAFAANFEST R BEBBER
SHAERRREZ EWARAT ETRA ) M &
14 [RAEZEBL - MABRKLE  FREBLRE
CREBESNEERRBFAG LBFEETES
2((EX2DBE  KEHNAERLBEEE
£ o

2R B S CEL AR AT Y B 2 m) 3 A B R B AS SR AT R
BRRAFAGLBEEENEFITLEMNR —F
AEARBREEMMBLRARIEESNE - F
1B BR 1B (BR — RO TE BB HM) /9 il K & s 1O R 75
&4 -

EERKRD HEAROREEENERR
KRR

BRIEC(ESZRAEGERMID((EHLBEERG)])E
32HREAFENEENRSTRAEBRER
KEEEMMESE  RZT—NFE+_A=+—
REEHNEZERZARARR - HEBRAF - M
BAE R EAEEE (R A(ESR RPE GG
£ XVED) BB P A A T

Interests in issued shares REBTROPHESR
Total % of total
number of  issued shares
Personal Family Corporate Other shares held h2H
Beneficial interests interests interests interests interests iEc2) ERTRG
BiER BAER RS NRER HitER R L Btk
The Company: Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
ARE BREERE01THERR
Ms Winnie NG (Note 1) mES T (HET) 1,000,000 — — 123,743 1,123,743 0.1%
Transport International Holdings Limited (“TIH") (Note 2): Ordinary shares of HK$1.0 each
HEERERERAR(RE] (Hi2) SREEE%1.0THEER
Dr John CHAN Cho Chak RAEEL 2,000 — — = 2,000 0.0%
Ms Winnie NG (Note 3) mES T L (HE3) 41,416 — — 21,000,609 21,042,025 5.2%
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Directors’ interests and short positions in shares,
underlying shares and debentures (continued)

Notes:

1. Ms Winnie NG has interest in 123,743 shares of the Company
as a beneficiary of certain private trusts which beneficially held
the shares.

2. TIH is the ultimate holding company of the Company.

3. Ms Winnie NG has interest in 21,000,609 shares of TIH as a
beneficiary of certain private trusts which beneficially held the
shares.

Apart from the foregoing, none of the Directors or any
of their spouses or children under eighteen years of age
has interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company, or any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or other associated corporations, as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for

Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.

Confirmation of independence

The Company has received from each of the Independent
Non-Executive Directors an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
considers all the Independent Non-Executive Directors to be

independent.

EERRD HEROELEREZNERER

KB (E)

3T -

1. BEBLZLTUETIAAGENZZATHEELRARF]
123,743 DR MxELAGTERFTE L
Mg o
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LR

B LAt FEN  EEREEAMEBIEARM TR
FRBERARAF  BEAERAF - MELQF
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Substantial shareholders’ and other persons’
interests and short positions in shares,
underlying shares and debentures

At 31 December 2014, the interests or short positions of
the persons (not being Directors and chief executives of
the Company) in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and required to be entered into
the register maintained by the Company pursuant to section
336 of the SFO were as follows:

FTERRREMALTRRG HEARO R
EREENEERARR

RZE—OF+ZA=+—H BREARAEZESEK
FHTTEQ/\E\M\E'J/\j:ﬁﬁ%ﬁZK’A73&ﬁﬁfﬂ$ﬁ
BEE(ERR(BEF RBEBKRADEXVE) VK
MREEROERSIAE - BRE(E %&Hﬂ
EHIYEXVEHE2RIDBREEHEERR

B R P L/()Sﬂziz<<%%&ﬁﬂfﬂﬂﬂ>%336{lk%\?ﬂ
RARBFENELME @ FBE0OT :

Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
BREEEY0. 1 THERR

% of total

issued shares

Registered Corporate Total number B2
shareholders interests of shares held ERTRG
ZERR NAIERE iR 7 EE Bok
Substantial shareholders FERR
TIH (Note) Az — 728,127,410 728,127,410 73.01%
KMB Resources Limited KMB Resources Limited 728,127,410 — 728,127,410 73.01%
Other person Hih AL
DJE Investment S.A. and others DJE Investment S.A. & E b 69,956,000 — 69,956,000 7.01%
Note: B =E -

KMB Resources Limited owns 728,127,410 shares of the Company.
KMB Resources Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of TIH, which is
accordingly deemed to be interested in the same number of shares
held by KMB Resources Limited in the Company under the SFO.

Apart from the foregoing, no other interests or short
positions required to be recorded in the register kept under

section 336 of the SFO have been notified to the Company.

Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at
the date of this Annual Report, the Company has maintained
the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.
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Directors’ interests in contracts

No contract of significance to which the Company, any of
its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
was a party, and in which a Director of the Company had a
material interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at any

time during the year.

Major customers and suppliers

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and
purchases attributable to the major customers and suppliers

respectively during the financial year is as follows:

EENENER

ApmE - HEAEZERAF - BHERRKFE R B
NRATEZERITENEERY  EARAES
RAFEZEZBIRFAEAEHEEEERH

f ©

IRFEFRHEER

REAFBEERN AEBETERFRHEEEMN
REERBEEER S AIFHINAT :

Percentage of the Group’s total

HARERHESE
Sales Purchases
HE BE
The largest customer BRAEF 6%
Five largest customers in aggregate EREFAT 24%
The largest supplier FAMER 30%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate AREEE ST 56%

During the year, The Kowloon Motor Bus Company (1933)
Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of TIH, is the
largest supplier of the Group. Two Directors of the Company
who held office at 31 December 2014 (31 December 2013:

two) had interest in the issued shares of TIH.

Purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s
listed securities

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the

Company's listed securities.

Pre-emptive rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the

Company'’s Bye-Laws and the Law in Bermuda.

Directors and senior management profiles

Profiles of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are set out on pages 36 to 42 of this Annual
Report.

R AEEBL(—A=ZZ)ERDA(HENEE
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ER-ZT-MFE+ A=t —BEENESR(=F
—ZFtZA=T—H MB)FARBERTK
DS o

BE HEIAEOALQF LTRSS
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Five year financial summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages
150 to 151 of this Annual Report.

Retirement schemes

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance and participates in employee pension schemes
organised by the local governments of the People’s Republic
of China (“PRC") under the regulations of the PRC. All these
retirement schemes are defined contribution plans and their

particulars are set out in note 28 to the financial statements.

Auditors

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG
as auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the

forthcoming Annual General Meeting.
By Order of the Board
Dr John CHAN Cho Chak

Chairman

Hong Kong, 12 March 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

ROADSHOW HOLDINGS LIMITED
FERABERAERDIDRRNB L ZBA RS

nIna

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders
of RoadShow Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of RoadShow Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together “the Group”) set out on pages 75 to
149, which comprise the consolidated and company balance
sheets as at 31 December 2014, the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

BEABERARATARRN
BB &

(RBEREZMRZNBERIF)

A (A TEREIRMDEEZTINEISAES
F1OEBRABERBRAR(TERR]) REMH
BLrl(RREEE DNEAMBRE SR
AEUMBHRREER_T-—NF+t_A=T—HHN
HARRREERAER  MEBEEZALFENK
AHEGEX HSAE2HEHKRAR HFAaRaEHRK
FEBRIRER URTESHBRRBERHEM
P EmEER -

EENGEUBRRARENEE

BERRESAAARBERAGITMAGRMAE
BB R EER) R FECR BHEG)DE R E R E R
REAMBRE  USHEMBRRIELEEM
DR AREEESRRRESENBR
RFFBBHRABES - LEREHBRR A FE
R EEF Sk SR AR T S B B A SR SRR AL

BB EME

RUNEEERBERMANBEZYZEFHEAMBER
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

ROADSHOW HOLDINGS LIMITED
BEABERERQBDRRNE L L BAMERS

Auditor’s responsibility (continued)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’'s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
of the Group as at 31 December 2014 and of the Group’s
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

12 March 2015
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
mEBEER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BECZ-ME+ZA=+-ALFE (REB%HHE)

Note 2014 2013
B3 $'000 $'000
T T
Turnover B 2&3 459,462 462,002
Other revenue Hbug A 4(a) 20,857 21,949
Other net (loss)/income Hith (B518) /et F 48 4(b) (5,101) 4,263
Total operating revenue REWABEE 475,218 488,214
Operating expenses ReEBH
Royalty, licence and management fees SRE - B
LEEE (187,546) (166,356)
Cost of production BUER A (90,568) (83,466)
Staff expenditure RN (86,263) (81,973)
Depreciation and amortisation HrEs s (14,292) (11,262)
Cost of inventories HFERA (7,018) (7,201)
Repairs and maintenance HERRE (6,656) (3,391)
Impairment loss on accounts receivable FE W BR TR E BT 1R (364) =
Other operating expenses Hii&= & (34,424) (35,683)
Total operating expenses ReBHBHE (427,131) (389,332)
Profit from operations gEER 48,087 98,882
Gain on disposal of other financial assets HEHMESRmEE W E 5 36,603 =
Reversal of impairment loss on other BEEteHEE
financial assets BB R 5 — 25,611
Profit before taxation BB AT BR 6 84,690 124,493
Income tax Fri8Fi 7(a) (8,008) (15,871)
Profit for the year rEERA 76,682 108,622
Attributable to: BfEmT :
Equity shareholders of the Company RATRER 10 70,587 104,853
Non-controlling interests By 6,095 3,769
Profit for the year TEERF 76,682 108,622
Earnings per share (in Hong Kong cents) BREBF GBI 12
Arising from the Group’s operations EEBAEBEREXK 3.85 7.94
Arising from gain on disposal of other financial EXRHEHMEH
assets/reversal of impairment loss on other BEWE BB i
financial assets cREERERE 3.23 2.57
Basic AR 7.08 10.51
Diluted g N/A 738 F N/A B

The notes on pages 82 to 149 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity
shareholders of the Company attributable to the year are set 11 o

out in note 11.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meETEWBER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BECZ-ME+ZA=+-ALFE (REB%HHE)

2014 2013
$'000 $'000
T T
Profit for the year REERF 76,682 108,622
Other comprehensive income for the year AEFEEHMEEEE
(after tax and reclassification adjustments): (BRBREHDERAER) :
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to HEWRENs BEBmNEE
profit or loss:
Available-for-sale debt securities: A EERES
Changes in fair value recognised in the fair FREINDAABEBENAIAE
value reserve during the year, net of nil tax EEE  HKREHIEE 253 (1,847)
Exchange differences on translation of the BRERBBIIEBPERROER
financial statements of operations outside 25 HIBRZHER
Hong Kong, net of nil tax (354) 365
Total comprehensive income for the year AEE2HEKZEE 76,581 107,140
Attributable to: FEEIT :
Equity shareholders of the Company RATRER 70,486 103,371
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR R = 6,095 3,769
Total comprehensive income for the year AEEZEHBREE 76,581 107,140

The notes on pages 82 to 149 form part of these financial ZE82BZF149E MM B R BHEK A — &
statements. 3 o
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

REEERER

At 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

RZFB-MFE+-A=+—H (EBRHE)

Note 2014 2013
M $'000 $'000
Fr ST
Non-current assets FREBEE
Fixed assets BEEEE 13 39,255 48,938
Intangible assets BRERE 14 2,441 =
Non-current prepayments and deposits FRBEAREREZS 15 7,444 12,484
Other financial assets Hitt e @ERE 17 — 8,124
Deferred tax assets EIERIBEEE 24(b) 4,311 3,770
53,451 73,316
Current assets REEE
Inventories ZE 18 1,720 975
Amount due from ultimate holding company FEUR B 483 IR A B FR 8 19(a) 5,004 5,004
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries EWEZRME A RE 19(d) 10,609 31,640
Accounts receivable FEUR BRFR 20 146,410 145,323
Other receivables and deposits HinEW R RS 50,660 11,148
Other financial assets HittemEE 17 7,837 95,559
Current tax recoverable FE W AS HR R 1H 24(a) 14,098 1,078
Pledged bank deposits EIRFRITER 21 61,400 61,400
Bank deposits and cash BTEARES 22 438,816 359,066
736,554 711,193
Current liabilities RBAE
Accounts payable FEAT BR X 23 2,913 1,592
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries FEA B 22 Bff 1B 22 B SR IE 19(d) 6,302 5,888
Other payables and accruals H At BRI
EETE A 102,373 90,693
Current tax payable FEAS A ERFH 18 24(a) 1,650 1,755
113,238 99,928
Net current assets REBEEFE 623,316 611,265
Total assets less current liabilities EELERABERS 676,767 684,581
Non-current liabilities FRBERE
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEEE 24(b) 125 129
NET ASSETS EEFHE 676,642 684,452
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BRAERFHEE
Share capital B 25(b) 99,737 99,737
Reserves HEE 566,305 575,010
Total equity attributable to equity ARARRR
shareholders of the Company FEh RS AEE 666,042 674,747
Non-controlling interests FEEERE RS 10,600 9,705
TOTAL EQUITY EEEE 676,642 684,452

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors

on 12 March 2015.

Dr John CHAN Cho Chak
PRIEE L

Chairman

£

The notes on pages 82 to 149 form part of these financial

statements.

KEFEEeN _T—AF=A+-_BZELHFTH
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Alex MO Tik Sang
E@4E

Managing Director
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%
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BALANCE SHEET
EEREX

At 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RZZBE-—ME+ZA=+—H (REBEHE)

Note 2014 2013
friE $000 $'000
Fr ST
Non-current assets EREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KB ATRE 16 62,835 62,835
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUH B A B FIE 19(c) 75,375 72,558
138,210 135,393
Current assets REEE
Amount due from ultimate holding company FE R Bx 4R 122 IR N B FRE 19(a) 5,004 5,004
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEU B A Bl FR I8 19(c) 399,395 427,664
Other receivables and deposits HitEW RN R iES 2,128 1,184
Pledged bank deposits S2IKIRRITER 21 61,400 61,400
Bank deposits and cash ROEFEARRS 22 136,922 100,026
604,849 595,278
Current liabilities REEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FE(SHI B A B8 19(b) 192,823 216,264
Other payables and accruals H AT BR R
K et & A 5,070 7,776
197,893 224,040
Net current assets REEEZE 406,956 371,238
Total assets less current liabilities EEBRERABERS 545,166 506,631
Non-current liabilities FRBERE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEA Mt B8 A R R IR 19(b) 146,391 126,411
NET ASSETS EEFE 398,775 380,220
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARFES 25(a)
Share capital B 99,737 99,737
Reserves HEE 299,038 280,483
TOTAL EQUITY R 398,775 380,220

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors R&EFe@R_T—RFE=H+ - Bt ELra &%
on 12 March 2015. H oo

Dr John CHAN Cho Chak Alex MO Tik Sang

PRIEZEE L E@E

Chairman Managing Director

FiE EFATE

The notes on pages 82 to 149 form part of these financial £82EZF149EMNMEBE AN KRR — &
statements. 5 o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE-Z-MF+-A=1t-HILFE (RBEHE)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

AR ERREMN
(Ac-
cumulated
losses)/
retained
Fair value profits Non-
Share Share  General Contributed Other ~ reserve  Exchange (23 controlling Total
Note capital  premium  reserve  surplus  reserve  AAEE  reseve  FE)/ Total interests equity
Wit ke ROEE -BEE E4EH®  HEER R MERE REERA B FERER  BREE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $1000 $1000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
i i T T T T fr T T i i
Balance at 1 January 2013 R=%-Z%-f-B
il 99,737 531,769 602 (200) (605) 1,623 14,255 (1,003) 646,178 9,936 656,114
Changes in equity for 2013: “R-CENEERD:
Proftfor the year REEERA = = - - - - — 10483 10483 3769 10862
Other comprehensive R 2ENE
income - - - - - (1,847) 365 - (1,482) - (1,482)
Total comprehensive income 2EAhEEE - - - - - (1,847) 365 104853 103,371 3,769 107,140
Share premium reduction RipaEs —  (531,769) — 531,769 - - - - - - -
Dividend approved in respect ABLEEEHENRE
of the previous year 11(b) - - - - - - — (74802 (74,802) — (74802
Dividend paid to non- B FEERERNRE
controlling interests - - - - - - - - - (4,000) (4,000)
Balance at 31 December R-B-=F+=f
2013 and 1 January 2014 t-AR=%-mF
—-A-Bige 99,737 — 602 531,569 (605) (224) 14,620 29,048 674,747 9,705 684,452
Changes in equity for 2014: “E-MENEEED:
Profit for the year AEEEA - - - - - - — 70587 70,587 6,095 76,682
Other comprehensive Efh2EUE
income - - - - - 253 (354) - (101) - (101)
Total comprehensive income 2ENEEE - - - - - 253 (354) 705587 70486 6095 76,581
Dividend approved in respect BELEECHENRE
of the previous year 11(b) - - - - - - — (19191 (79191) - (19191)
Dividend paid to non- B FFEREENRE
controlling interests - - - - - - - - - (5,200) (5,200)
Balance at 31 December RZB-ME+Zf
2014 =t-RiEe 99,737 - 602 531,569 (605) 29 14,266 20,444 666,042 10,600 676,642

The notes on pages 82 to 149 form part of these financial

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BECZ-ME+ZA=+-ALFE (REB%HHE)

Note 2014 2013
Mi=E $'000 $'000
T T
Operating activities REEE
Profit before taxation B AT B F 84,690 124,493
Adjustments for: FHE
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH 14,292 11,262
Loss on disposal of fixed assets HEBEEEFE — 103
Impairment loss on accounts receivable FEWERFRERE 364 —
Write-down of inventories FE MR 127 =
Reversal of write-down of inventories £ [0 17 & MO - (68)
Gain on disposal of other financial assets HEHMSRMEE RS (36,603) =
Reversal of impairment loss on other BEHMEREERE
financial assets BB — (25,611)
Interest income FIE WA (9,880) (9.922)
Foreign exchange loss/(gain) EREE (k&) 4,060 (4,639)
Operating profit before changes in working EEESRBAINKE
capital 2R 57,050 95,618
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FE @M, R (872) 257
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due from fellow FEUN B 2 BT B 2 B FIE
subsidiaries A () 21,031 (16,945)
Increase in accounts receivable FE WK BR SR A5 BN (1,451) (27,756)
Increase in other receivables and deposits HitEWERR RS
40 (2,028) (623)
Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable FETERFRIZ N CRIA) 1,321 (684)
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to fellow FES R A B 2 BRIE
subsidiaries g, Crid) 414 (1,961)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables and H b e BRF K FE ST
accruals ERAEM R 11,677 (932)
Cash generated from operations REKEEHNERE 87,142 46,974
Tax paid 2%5i8|
— Hong Kong Profits Tax paid — BENEBREHR (16,338) (20,862)
— The People’s Republic of China (“PRC") — ENHREARLME
income tax paid (TR E ) P st (890) (485)
Net cash generated from operating activities REKLEEFHHRS
R 69,914 25,627
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Note 2014 2013

Mi=E $'000 $'000
T T
Investing activities REEE
Payment for purchase of fixed assets BABREEEMNRK (4,078) (12,862)
Payment for intangible assets BARLEEMNK (2,930) =
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets HEEEEEMESNRIE — 47
Repayment of loan from investee WRELREEEN 25,611 —
Repayment of other non-current EEHMERD SR
financial assets EE 70,020 —
Interest received BRI E 9,980 11,539
Decrease in bank deposits with original REHRAERB=@EA
maturities over three months HISRATERUR D 20,317 61,040
Net cash generated from investing activities REREZBNERES
R 118,920 59,764
Financing activities REEE
Increase in pledged bank deposits 2K RATF RGN — (1,200)
Dividend paid ENRE (79,191) (74,802)
Dividend paid to non-controlling shareholders ENFHRERKRRN
3= (5,200) (4,000)
Net cash used in financing activities ARBETBNERS
R (84,391) (80,002)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ReRASEEWILM
=i 104,443 5,389
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A—HNRER
REEEY 159,253 152,120
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EZSFHHTE (1,550) 1,744
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December RTZA=1+—HHK
RERREEEY 22 262,146 159,253
The notes on pages 82 to 149 form part of these financial 2828 FF 149 B WK sF B AN IEh KR 89— =0
statements. 7 o
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82

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PRk MY

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(RBBERIN  GZBYEHE)

1.

Significant accounting policies

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, which for this financial
year and the comparative period continue to be
those of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap.32), in accordance with transitional
and saving arrangements for Part 9 of the new
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622),
“Accounts and Audit”, which are set out in sections
76 to 87 of Schedule 11 to that Ordinance. These
financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the Listing
Rules”). A summary of the significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of
the Group and the Company. Note 1(c) provides
information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group for the current and prior accounting

periods reflected in these financial statements.
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1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2014 comprise the Company
and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the

“Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is the historical cost basis
except that certain investments (see note 1(e)) are

stated at their fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from

these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and

future periods.

Judgements and estimates made by management in
the application of HKFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements are discussed in note 31.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FAFE SRR RE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREZBERIN - STRBEHE)

1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments
to HKFRSs and one new Interpretation that are first
effective for the current accounting period of the
Group and the Company. Of these, the following
developments are relevant to the Group’s financial

statements:

e Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS

27, Investment entities

e Amendments to HKAS 32, Offsetting financial

assets and financial liabilities

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period. Impacts of the adoption of the

amended HKFRSs are discussed below:

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27,
Investment entities

The amendments provide consolidation relief to
those parents which qualify to be an investment
entity as defined in the amended HKFRS 10.
Investment entities are required to measure their
subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss.
These amendments do not have an impact on these
financial statements as the Group does not qualify to

be an investment entity.

Amendments to HKAS 32, Offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify the offsetting
criteria in HKAS 32. The amendments do not have
an impact on these financial statements as they are
consistent with the policies already adopted by the
Group.
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1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash
flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of

impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to
the Company, and in respect of which the Group has
not agreed any additional terms with the holders of
those interests which would result in the Group as
a whole having a contractual obligation in respect
of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination,
the Group can elect to measure any non-controlling
interests either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net

identifiable assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FAFE SRR RE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREZBERIN - STRBEHE)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated balance sheet within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders
of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the
results of the Group are presented on the face
of the consolidated income statement and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income
as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between non-
controlling interests and the equity shareholders of
the Company.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
change in relative interests, but no adjustments are

made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained
in that former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a
financial asset (see note 1(e)) or, when appropriate,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an

associate or joint venture.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in
a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses
(see note 1(j)).
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1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(e) Other investments in debt securities and equity

interest
The Group's and the Company’s policies for
investments in debt securities and equity interest,

other than investments in subsidiaries, are as follows:

Investments in debt securities and equity interest are
initially stated at fair value, which is their transaction
price unless it is determined that the fair value at
initial recognition differs from the transaction price
and that fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in
an active market for an identical asset or liability or
based on a valuation technique that uses only data
from observable markets. Cost includes attributable
transaction costs, except where indicated otherwise
below. These investments are subsequently
accounted for as follows, depending on their

classification:

Investments in debt securities and equity interest
held for trading are classified as current assets.
Any attributable transaction costs are recognised
in profit or loss as incurred. At each balance sheet
date the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant
gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. The
net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss does not
include any dividend and interest earned on these
investments as these are recognised in accordance

with the policies set out in notes 1(p)(v) and (p)(iv).

Dated debt securities that the Group and/or the
Company have the positive ability and intention to
hold to maturity are classified as held-to-maturity
securities. Held-to-maturity securities are stated in
the balance sheet at amortised cost less impairment
losses (see note 1())).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FAFE SRR RE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREZBERIN - STRBEHE)

1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(e) Other investments in debt securities and equity

interest (continued)

Investments in debt securities and equity interest
which do not fall into any of the above categories
are classified as available-for-sale investment. At
each balance sheet date the fair value is remeasured,
with any resultant gain or loss being recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the fair value reserve. As an
exception to this, investments in equity interest that
do not have a quoted price in an active market for
an identical instrument and whose fair value cannot
otherwise be reliably measured are recognised in
the balance sheet at cost less impairment losses
(see note 1(j)). Dividend income from equity interest
and interest income from debt securities calculated
using the effective interest method are recognised
in profit or loss in accordance with the policies set
out in notes 1(p)(v) and 1(p)(iv), respectively. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from changes
in the amortised cost of debt securities are also

recognised in profit or loss.

When the investments are derecognised or impaired
(see note 1(j)), the cumulative gain or loss recognised
in equity is reclassified to profit or loss. Investments
are recognised/derecognised on the date the Group
commits to purchase/sell the investments or they

expire.

Fixed assets and depreciation
Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated

depreciation and impairment losses (see note 1(j)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of fixed assets are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement

or disposal.
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(f)

Fixed assets and depreciation (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
items of fixed assets, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight-line method over

their estimated useful lives as follows:

Audio and visual equipment 5 — 7 years
Billboards Over the remaining

lease term
Furniture and fixtures 7 years
Hardware and software 5 years
Leasehold improvements Over the remaining

lease term

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value,

if any, are reviewed annually.

Programming library

(i) Programming library consists of commissioned
programming and contracted programming
cost in respect of programming rights of
presentation. Expenditure on commissioned and
contracted programmes is amortised to profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the licence

period.

(i) Cost of programmes produced in-house is
recognised as an expense in the period in which
it is incurred.

Intangible assets and amortisation

Expenditure on development activities is capitalised
if the product or process is technically and
commercially feasible and the Group has sufficient
resources and the intention to complete the
development. Capitalised development costs are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where
the estimated useful life is finite) and impairment

losses (see note 1())).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FAFE SRR RE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREZBERIN - STRBEHE)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(h) Intangible assets and amortisation (continued)

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful
lives is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives. Website
and mobile apps development costs capitalised are
amortised over their estimated useful lives of five
years from the date they are available for use. Both
the period and method of amortisation are reviewed

annually.

Accounts receivable and other receivables

Accounts receivable and other receivables are
initially recognised at fair value and thereafter
stated at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less allowance for impairment of doubtful
debts (see note 1(j)), except where the receivables
are interest-free loans made to related parties
without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of
discounting would be immaterial. In such cases,
the receivables are stated at cost less allowance for

impairment of doubtful debts (see note 1(j)).

Impairment of assets

(i) Impairment of investments in debt securities
and equity interest and receivables
Investments in debt securities and equity interest
and current and non-current receivables that are
stated at cost or amortised cost or are classified
as available-for-sale securities are reviewed at
each balance sheet date to determine whether
there is objective evidence of impairment.
Objective evidence of impairment includes
observable data that comes to the attention of
the Group about one or more of the following

loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;
— a breach of contract, such as a default or

delinquency in interest or principal payments;
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1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

() Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in debt securities
and equity interest and receivables (continued)
— it becoming probable that the debtor

will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; and

a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of an investment in an equity

instrument below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss

is determined and recognised as follows:

— For unquoted equity interest carried at cost,

the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of
the financial asset and the estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset
where the effect of discounting is material.
Impairment loss for equity interest carried at

cost is not reversed.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PSR R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREZBERIN - STRBEHE)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

() Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in debt securities

and equity interest and receivables (continued)

For trade and other receivables and other
financial assets carried at amortised cost,
the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.
the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets), where the effect
of discounting is material. This assessment
is made collectively where these financial
assets share similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status, and have
not been individually assessed as impaired.
Future cash flows for financial assets which
are assessed for impairment collectively are
based on historical loss experience for assets
with credit risk characteristics similar to the

collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss. A reversal of an
impairment loss shall not result in the assets’
carrying amount exceeding that which would
have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.
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1. TESTEHERE)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(i) Impairment of assets (continued) () EERMEG@E
(i) Impairment of investments in debt securities (i) EEEFRBRERERENRF L5
and equity interest and receivables (continued) B (&)

— For available-for-sale debt securities, the
cumulative loss that has been recognised
directly in the fair value reserve is reclassified
to profit or loss. The amount of the
cumulative loss that is recognised in profit or
loss is the difference between the acquisition
cost (net of any principal repayment and
amortisation) and current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that asset previously

recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses in respect of available-
for-sale debt securities are reversed if the
subsequent increase in fair value can be
objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised.
Reversals of impairment losses in such
circumstances are recognised in profit or

loss.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade debtors and bills receivable included
within accounts receivable, whose recovery is
In this
case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts

considered doubtful but not remote.

are recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote,
the amount considered irrecoverable is written
off against trade debtors and bills receivable
directly and any amounts held in the allowance
account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed
against the allowance account. Other changes
in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off

directly are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PSR R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREZBERIN - STRBEHE)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

() Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are

reviewed at each balance sheet date to identify

indications that fixed assets, intangible assets

and investments in subsidiaries in the Company's

balance sheet may be impaired or an impairment

loss previously recognised no longer exists or

may have decreased.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s

recoverable amount is estimated.

— Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently

(i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated to reduce the
carrying amount of the assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less
costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in

use (if determinable).

RoadShow Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2014

1. TESTEHERE)

1)

EERME @)
(ii) Rt &ZEmE

REBELFEREHRIIERRIR - K
HHBETEEE  BREENARAE
ERBERANMNBARREBEGRE
MRS - R Z AR AR EERE
LBETBFEXAEELRD -

EFETMABRBSR - AftstEEN
EE4EE ¢

— HK[EIZEE e E B %
BEAWEHERSERAEBER
HERAREREEME S
BeE - HEFGEREER €
i€ A BR B AT 4T 3R R A5 fh &1 R 2R 3R
ERENREERE - ZFRX
Ty RBR T 35 E B AT AT (A ) B B
REERZEENTERR - &
BEMEANRAERALERE
BUNEMWEEMEENR SR
A BIE AT Y @ B Th 1R R B AL
EXFRERANKNEEAS (B
—ERELEEEMETE -

— BEERAEL
BEEAENERAEE(REMBEN
ReLEEM)SRHEARE S
B - AN B E R AR BEE
BepAeEEEMERNBIE
BReRLIIRDEM(REMNA
BREMEENREE  HEE
FHETSRSZENEMERN A
AREER L EKA (A &)k
EREE(IAEE )RS -



1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

() Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets (continued)

— Reversals of impairment losses
An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

(i) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to
prepare an interim financial report in compliance
with HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in
respect of the first six months of the financial
year. At the end of the interim period, the
Group applies the same impairment testing,
recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at
the end of the financial year (see notes 1(j)(i) and

(i1)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim
period in respect of unquoted equity interest
carried at cost are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a
smaller loss, would have been recognised had
the impairment been assessed only at the end
of the financial year to which the interim period
relates.

(k) Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net

realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in-first-out costing
method and comprises all costs of purchase and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to

their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs

necessary to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FAFE SRR RE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREZBERIN - STRBEHE)

1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k)

Inventories (continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.

Accounts payable and other payables

Accounts payable and other payables are initially
recognised at fair value and subsequently stated
at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated
at cost.

(m) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax
assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused
tax credits.
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1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(n) Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that
may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of
existing taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as
the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back
or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in
the case of taxable differences, the Group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future,
or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is
probable that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FAFE SRR RE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREZBERIN - STRBEHE)

1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(n)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at each balance sheet date and is reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the
related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction
is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group or
the Company has the legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and the following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Group or the Company intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered, intend to realise
the current tax assets and settle the current
tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.
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1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(o) Provisions and contingent liabilities (continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic

benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can
be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit

or loss as follows:

(i) Income from multi-media sales, bus interior and
exterior advertising, and advertising on transit
vehicle shelters, online portal, mobile apps and
outdoor signages is recognised when the related
advertisements are telecast or commercials
appear before the public. Revenue is stated net

of agency commission and rebate.

(i) Fee income from media sales management

and administrative services, production of
advertisements, and advertising agency services
is recognised when the related services are

rendered.

(iii) Revenue from sale of merchandise is recognised
when the merchandise is delivered at the
customers’ premises which is taken to be the
point in time when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the merchandise have
been transferred to the customers. Revenue is

stated net of trade discounts.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FAFE SRR RE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREZBERIN - STRBEHE)

1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(p)

Revenue recognition (continued)
(iv) Interest income is recognised as it accrues using

the effective interest method.

(v) Dividend income from unlisted investments
is recognised when the shareholders’ right to

receive payment is established.

Leased assets and operating leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a
series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the
Group determines that the arrangement conveys a
right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed
period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on
an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement
and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes

the legal form of a lease.

Leases which do not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are

classified as operating leases.

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased assets. Lease incentives
received are recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made.

Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated services
are rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present

values.
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued) . TESTEHEGE)

(s) Translation of foreign currencies (s) ShEE5H
The functional currency of the Company and RAREREBEENMNBARININEE
subsidiaries which operate in Hong Kong is Hong KRB MRTPELENNMBRRINI
Kong dollar while that for subsidiaries which operate REEEARARYE - ARFNZ2IEBR
in the PRC is Renminbi. The presentation currency of B o

the Company is Hong Kong dollar.

Foreign currency transactions during the year are FARIIMNER GIEX HBNEXRRE -
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling INERBANE Vi%%,éfﬁ&ié\i\,\ﬁz,ﬁ%?ta
at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and BEERBE o Hialas REEN 8RN E
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are PR

translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses are

recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are BRE LKA ELAIINEREMHIETE
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign BERBE ARARZENEXHRE
currency are translated using the foreign exchange BRARBEINRILAINE BEMHIEEE
rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary BERBE HAFEAFEAALEBEERD
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign PERIME o

currencies that are stated at fair value are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates

the fair value was measured.

The results of operations outside Hong Kong are %/%M%%fkm% IR 5 B R E X
translated into Hong Kong dollar at the exchange HENEXRE /AR - EEHEKRMNIE
rates approximating the foreign exchange rates BREZEANERRE RSB - Fﬁ?iﬁ']
ruling at the dates of the transactions. Balance EREREENAMEEKEER TR
sheet items are translated into Hong Kong dollar R HE R #EE D R R -

at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance
sheet date. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the

exchange reserve.

On disposal of an operation outside Hong Kong, REEBEBUINRBE  HREBELER
the cumulative amount of the exchange differences BaNBRANRTELZE  gaFEY
recognised in equity which relate to that operation ERANGFER -

is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on
disposal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PSR R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREZBERIN - STRBEHE)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(t) Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s

family, is related to the Group if that person:
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or the Group's

parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

() The entity and the Group are members of
the same Group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a Group of which

the other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same

third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity

and the other entity is an associate of the

third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the

Group or an entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled

by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).
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1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(t)

Related parties (continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings

with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources
to, and assessing the performance of, the Group's

various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be

aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

TEEFHE®E)

EBEALT@E)

M%AimLﬁEmﬁ%/ggﬁﬁ*%
AR EREATIXRZATEE

W%%&Eo

/'\ﬁBﬁﬁd—_

«%%ﬂ&mﬂﬁﬁ% W E DB E

FBNERAEB L GEBRLE iiﬂz
E D BCE R K wFh LR IR A A 5 B &
MITHRERAE Eﬁﬁkﬁi\ﬁ’]ﬂﬂ%é{ﬂ%u
& 5l

BERBERNKEED MM BEREM S AL
g A ﬁ%#&%ﬁv% Eﬁ*ﬁﬂi%m%

B URA T tE - EE
BFEE - ﬁﬁ*ﬁﬁ”&iﬁ J ﬁFH’E D IHE
mEREMBHTEREERRLEE -
WIFERBEANLE D HAR Lt K&

HE - BIATRE® AR ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FAFE SRR RE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREZBERIN - STRBEHE)

Segment reporting

The Group manages its business by geographical areas.
In a manner consistent with the way in which information
is reported internally to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment, the Group has
identified the following two reportable segments.

Hong Kong: Provision of media sales, design
and management services and
production of advertisements
Mainland China:  Provision of media sales services and

production of advertisements

There are no sales between the reportable segments.

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group's
most senior executive management monitors the results
attributable to each reportable segment on the following

bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments
or which otherwise arise from the depreciation and

amortisation of assets attributable to those segments.

Segment assets and liabilities include all current and
non-current assets and liabilities, respectively, which are

directly managed by the segments.

Information regarding the Group's reportable segments
for the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 is set
out below.
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2. Segment reporting (continued) 2. DEHmE (&)
(a) Reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, assets (a) EROEBRA - B XEE - BEELE
and liabilities: f&
Hong Kong Mainland China Total
B EbN st
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T FTr T FTr T Fr
Revenue from external REMDEEH
customers ON 459,462 461,402 - 600 459,462 462,002
Other revenue and other Hv g A & E U
net income/(loss) &=/ (58) 3458 10,975 11,922 13 (88) 10,988 11,834
Reportable segment 5T 1L ON
revenue 470,437 473,324 13 512 470,450 473,836
Reportable segment profit 2R HEF 58,629 104,297 35,493 24,026 94,122 128,323
Depreciation and REETEEEH
amortisation for the year (12,368)  (10,043) (4) (28) (12,372)  (10,071)
Reversal of impairment loss BEHMEmEE
on other financial assets HERE — — — 25,611 — 25,611
Gain on disposal of other HEHMERMEE
financial assets Wz — — 36,603 — 36,603 —
Reportable segment ERIHEE
assets 606,473 501,776 166,652 196,368 773,125 698,144
Additions to non-current FRIERB DT
segment assets during EENRE
the year 7,008 12,862 — — 7,008 12,862
Reportable segment ERHHEE
liabilities 113,021 99,733 342 324 113,363 100,057
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FAFE SRR RE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREZBERIN - STRBEHE)

2. Segment reporting (continued) 2. DERERE ()

(b) The Group's reportable segment liabilities are equal (b) AEENERNOBABEHEFNESRER
to consolidated total liabilities. Reconciliations of o EMHIMMA » BFIKEEREEY
reportable segment revenue, profit or loss and RN
assets are as follows:

2014 2013
$'000 $'000
T ST
Revenue A
Reportable segment revenue EFRDIURA 470,450 473,836
Unallocated other revenue and other Ao EEAMUA R E MU=
net income HEE 4,768 14,378
Consolidated total operating revenue RERE W AL 475,218 488,214
2014 2013
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
Profit or loss ERIRNEE
Reportable segment profit Z2HHEBEF 94,122 128,323
Unallocated other revenue and other R EEHE MR A R E AU
net income T 4,768 14,378
Unallocated head office and corporate ROMAMBEER EETH
expenses (14,200) (18,208)
Consolidated profit before taxation LA BRF AT Z R 84,690 124,493
2014 2013
$'000 $'000
T ST
Assets EE
Reportable segment assets ERPHEE 773,125 698,144
Available-for-sale debt securities A HEEEHE S 7,837 78,072
Unallocated head office and corporate ROMBMBERCEEE
assets 9,043 8,293
Consolidated total assets GEEERAE 790,005 784,509
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3. Turnover

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of
media sales and design services and production of
advertisements for Multi-media On-board (“MMOB” or
“BUS-TV"), transit vehicle exteriors and interiors, online

portal, mobile apps, shelters and outdoor signages

3. EXH¥

advertising businesses. The Group is also engaged in BERRTS o

the provision of integrated marketing services covering

these advertising platforms.

Turnover represents income from media sales,
design and management services and production of

advertisements, net of commission and rebate.

AEETERZEARDERB(IRDZHE]
HELTER])  FEEREFIMNERERA
B Wy FREAREN  REZ - FPINE
TR R RE B & S ARG IR R B BUE o
SETRUREUEESFaNRamEE

EERBREARKERSREMNK  REKE
HE R REERBAREERENKES

4. Other revenue and other net (loss)/income 4. HttW AR H#M (FE) WS FE

(a) Other revenue

(a) EHAKA

2014 2013
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
Interest income from listed RELmAHEEERESRN
available-for-sale debt securities FEWA 1,511 3,097
Other interest income HaR EWA 8,369 6,825
Interest income from financial assets REMFEBBRIZENAEE
not at fair value through profit or loss FIRMNESRMEENFE WA 9,880 9,922
Sales of merchandise EmiHE 10,916 11,611
Sundry revenue Hug A 61 416
20,857 21,949
(b) Other net (loss)/income (b) HAb(E5E) WHFE
2014 2013
$'000 $'000
T Tt
Exchange (loss)/gain E X (F58) s (5,101) 4,366
Loss on disposal of fixed assets HEEEEERE — (103)
(5,101) 4,263
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FAFE SRR RE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREZBERIN - STRBEHE)

5. HEHMERMEEWSERBRE LM

5. Gain on disposal of other financial assets and

reversal of impairment loss on other financial
assets

On 9 January 2014, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group entered into (i) an Equity Transfer Agreement
to sell and transfer the Group’s entire equity interest
in an investee to an independent third party for
RMB30,000,000 (equivalent to $37,332,000); and (ii)
a Creditor's Rights Transfer Agreement to sell and
assign its entire interest in the loans to an investee for
RMB20,000,000 (equivalent to $25,611,000).

At 31 December 2013, the management considered
that the conclusion of the Creditor’'s Rights Transfer
Agreement was highly probable. Accordingly, a reversal
of impairment loss on the loans to an investee of
$25,611,000 was recognised during the year ended 31
December 2013.

At 31 December 2014, the entire equity interest in
respect of the Equity Transfer Agreement has been
transferred, and a gain on disposal before tax of
$36,603,000 has been recognised which represented
sale consideration less direct costs of disposal of
$729,000. The net gain on disposal after tax was
$32,159,000 which represented gain on disposal less
PRC withholding tax amounting to $4,444,000.

EERERE

R-TE—NE—-—AALB AEE K2 &
MBARGIZ()VREEZHE UARK
30,000,000 70 (48 & 737,332,000 7T ) @] —
BUF=-HTHEREZASER —RHHEKRE
NEHDEARKE - R (i) EREEZERE - A
R % 20,000,000 7t (4 & 1 25,611,000 7% )
FEREZERN —RARKEQAANERNZ
R o

R_EBE-—=%+_A=+—H EBER
REKREREERHZOREER - Bt
RBEE_Z—=Ff+_A=+—HLLFE
BABBLORTRREARAERNRERSRE
25,611,0007C °

N-ZBE—NE+-A=+—H0 HEREE:E
HBEEENEIRED TEE  YERARK
6 BT H & U2k 36,603,000 7T+ BN H & R B
HEHERART29,0007T o BB HE WS
P8 432,159,000T © B E W B BTE
i 4,444,000 7T °

Profit before taxation BR %1 Ay 2 R
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging: BB R & A2 7k
2014 2013
$'000 $'000
Fr T
Auditor’s remuneration ZEET N 2,882 2,637
Contributions to defined contribution TERR M PR INGT EIHR
retirement schemes 1,904 1,947
Depreciation and amortisation W 14,292 11,262
Reversal of impairment loss on other BEHMEREERERIE
financial assets —_ 25,611
Gain on disposal of other financial assets HEHMEmEE R 36,603 —
Operating lease charges KEHERH
— land and buildings — T REF 5,508 5,819
— audio and visual equipment — HERE 1,824 5,309
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7.

Income tax in the consolidated income

7. IIRGEEERNVFTES

statement
(a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement (a) FIRNGREEZRNBIES !
represents:
2014 2013
$'000 $'000
Fr T
Current tax NEAHEIE
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for REERBFEHRIBHE
the current year 3,399 16,541
Over-provision in respect of prior years BEFERERE (232) (95)
3,167 16,446
Provision for PRC income tax BT TR 5,346 605
Under-provision in respect of prior years BEIEFERETE 40 —
8,553 17,051
Deferred tax IEFER I8
Reversal and origination of temporary ERMEENEERER
differences (545) (1,180)
Income tax expense Fri8fi & 8,008 15,871

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year
is calculated at 16.5% (2013: 16.5%) of the estimated
assessable profits for the year. Taxation for
subsidiaries in the PRC is charged at the appropriate

current rates of taxation ruling in the PRC.

REENEBANNESHBEDNRBAFE
Gt ERMBANN16.5%(ZTE—=4

16.5%)5t & - RABEMKTE LR RNHEA

AIRIRHBIR TR E AR

Shr = A
RETH -

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting (b) RERAB R ENBAMRETFRAMN
profit at applicable tax rates: IR
2014 2013
$'000 $'000
T T
Profit before taxation R AT 2 F 84,690 124,493
Notional tax on profit before taxation, MR A B RIRZEFI AT
calculated at the rates applicable to AEERERBETEN
profits in the tax jurisdictions ZAENIE 12,689 20,746
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TR B S R e S 940 136
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BARBBRANTESE (847) (5,901)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERR IS ERANHR EEE 6,667 887
Use of tax losses carried from previous FREBFFELENTE
years 518 (11,554) —
Over-provision in prior years BEFEBERE (192) (95)
Others Hith 305 98
Actual tax expense BREFHIER 8,008 15,871
20143 RABERERAF
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FAFE SRR RE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREZBERIN - STRBEHE)

8. Directors’ remuneration 8. EEME
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section BREFEB(RAIEANE622E)REKR1ME
78 of Schedule 11 to the new Hong Kong Companies 781 R2RBRREBAAEHNE3I2E)E
Ordinance (Cap.622), with reference to section 161 16116 EFTMAANBEE  ESHeEED
of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance I
(Cap.32) and the Listing Rules is as follows:
2014
Salaries, Retirement
Directors' allowances  Discretionary scheme
fees and benefits bonuses  contributions Total
He 28
Ezhe RER METAL  RAGEER @t
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
r Fr r r r
Executive Director HITES
Mr Alex MO Tik Sang FHERE 110 1,968 1,867 17 3,962
Non-Executive Directors FUTES
Dr John CHAN Cho Chak REEEL 154 — — - 154
Ms Winnie NG ity 231 - - - 231
Mr YUNG Wing Chung BKBEE 253 - - - 253
Mr MAK Chun Keung BiRREE 110 - - - 110
Mr John Anthony MILLER HEREE 110 - - - 110
Mr Edmond HO Tat Man (Note 1) MEXREWZ1) 57 - - - 57
Mr Allen FUNG Yuk Lun (Note 2) BEBLEMNZ2) 53 - - - 53
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUFHTES
Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI HRREL 257 - - - 257
Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung ZREBL 279 - - - 279
Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan Leung RCRHE 257 - - - 257
Dr John YEUNG Hin Chung BEMEL 110 — - - 110
1,981 1,968 1,867 17 5,833
Notes: Wi -
1. Mr Edmond HO Tat Man resigned as a Director with effect 1. MENEEE-ZT—HNFELANAREEES -
from 8 July 2014.
2. Mr Allen FUNG Yuk Lun was appointed as a Director with 2. BEBEEE-T—NFLtA/\BREZEARE
effect from 8 July 2014. Fo
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8.

9.

Directors’ remuneration (continued)

8. EXM=(®)

2013
Salaries, Retirement
Directors’ allowances Discretionary scheme
fees and benefits bonuses contributions Total
£
B2He K& ML BARGEER At
$'000 $000 $'000 $000 $'000
Fr T T Fr T
Executive Director HITES
Mr Alex MO Tik Sang ERERE 110 1,776 2,524 15 4,425
Non-Executive Directors FHTES
Dr John CHAN Cho Chak RiEEEL 154 — — — 154
Ms Winnie NG iitc P 176 - - - 176
Mr YUNG Wing Chung AXBEE 198 — — — 198
Mr MAK Chun Keung ERB%E 110 — — - 110
Mr John Anthony MILLER BERRE 110 — — - 110
Mr Edmond HO Tat Man MELEE 110 — — — 110
Independent Non-Executive Directors  BUFHTES
Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI REREL 202 - — = 202
Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung FREEL 202 = = = 202
Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan Leung  RIZRHH&R 202 — - — 202
Dr John YEUNG Hin Chung BRTEL 110 — — - 110
1,684 1,776 2,524 15 5,999
Individuals with highest emoluments BeaME AL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, hEZ&mMe ALtheEE—R(ZE—=F:

one (2013: one) is a Director whose emoluments are

—R)EE ZEFH

MIEE8 i e - &4

disclosed in note 8. The aggregate of the emoluments in ME(ZTE—=F: IR )&a M A 8B
respect of the other four (2013: four) individuals are as AT
follows:
2014 2013
$'000 $'000
Fr T
Salaries, allowances and other benefits e MR EMEF 6,110 5,691
Retirement scheme contributions BNGTEIH R 67 60
6,177 5,751
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FAFE SRR RE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREZBERIN - STRBEHE)

9. Individuals with highest emoluments 9. BEME AL ()
(continued)
The emoluments of the four (2013: four) individuals with ZNE(ZE2—=F: NZ ) &Eaile ATH
the highest emoluments are within the following bands: MeEstmnT :
Number of individuals
AH
2014 2013
$1,000,001 — $1,500,000 1,000,001 ;t — 1,500,000 jT 1 4
$1,500,001 — $2,000,000 1,500,001 jt — 2,000,000 jT 3 —
4

10.Profit attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company

The consolidated profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company includes a profit of
$97,746,000 (2013: loss of $2,279,000) which has been
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.

11.Dividends

(a) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the year:

10. R D A R R EAL B F

ARABIBRREEGABIABE S AH
97,746,000 7T Hy & F(

2,279,0007T)

RAEHERIE -

MERE

AR E

T—=—F: B
AR & # B 7 )

(a) "EERNEDATARRHKE :

2014 2013
$'000 $'000
Fr Fr
Final dividend proposed after the balance REERERRD KRR E
sheet date of 3.85 cents per share BR3BI(ZE—=5F:
(2013: 7.94 cents per share) FBRR7.9411L) 38,399 79,191
Special dividend proposed after the REEHERRZD RS HIRE
balance sheet date of 4.10 cents BR410ML(ZE—=4F :
per share (2013: Nil cent per share) FSRE) 40,892 —
79,291 79,191

The final dividend and special dividend proposed
after the balance sheet date have not been

recognised as a liability at the balance sheet date.
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11.Dividends (continued)

(b) Dividend payable to equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the previous year,
approved and paid during the year:

1"M.RE (&)
) ERFARERKBN EFERAERQT

BRERE :

2014 2013
$'000 $'000
T F
Final dividend in respect of the previous ERFERHERIKE
financial year, approved and paid during F-BBRFERERE
the year, of 7.94 cents per share (2013: SR794MW(=ZFBE—=F:
7.50 cents per share) FHRR7.501L) 79,191 74,802
12.Earnings per share 12.8KR&R
(a) Basic earnings per share (a) BREXEAR
The calculation of basic earnings per share is BREXBNEREBARAAA L BERKRK
based on the profit attributable to ordinary equity R FE 15 & 770,587,000t(= F — =
shareholders of the Company of $70,587,000 £ 104,853,000t ) & i W g % 17
(2013: $104,853,000) and the weighted average of 997,365,332 E@MR(=ZFE — = F :
997,365,332 ordinary shares (2013: 997,365,332 997,365,332 (% & @ A% ) &Y pnE 15 &t
ordinary shares) in issue during the year. go
During the year ended 31 December 2014, the BHE_Z—MFE+-_A=1+—RHIEFE -

calculation of basic earnings per share arising from
gain on disposal of other financial assets and the
Group's other operations is based on profits arising
from the respective operations of $32,159,000 and
$38,428,000 respectively and 997,365,332 shares in

issue.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the
calculation of basic earnings per share arising
from reversal of impairment loss on other financial
assets and the Group’s other operations is based
on profits arising from the respective operations
of $25,611,000 and $79,242,000 respectively and
997,365,332 shares in issue.

Diluted earnings per share

There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares
outstanding during the years ended 31 December
2014 and 2013.

Fiﬁtﬂm/\@irﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁ s RASEH

M EREBNTRERBN D RIREE

EEEBLEEBERF32,159,0007T

&38 428, 000713 A K 997,365,332f% 2
BITRMOEE ©

BE-_ZTZ-—=F+-A=1+—BILEE
ErERDNAMEREEREEERAE
SEEMEEEBNERERNEN TS
MRBEFANELABEHEREEEBNR
#25,611,0007T % 79,242,0007C LA &
997,365,332 [REBITRMHFE °

BREFERZA
REE_Z—HONFR-_ZT—=F+=H
T+ HBULFEVEABTEHESEND
%ﬁ'a HX&
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FAFE SRR RE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREZBERIN - STRBEHE)

13.Fixed assets 13.BEEE
The Group
1%H
Audio
and visual Hardware Furniture Leasehold
equipment and software and fixtures improvements Billboards Total
YERfE BRREHK FiREE HEMERE EER #it
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tr T T T T Tr
Cost: B
At 1 January 2013 WZE-=E-B- 135411 4,989 2,329 1,751 3,500 147,980
Exchange adjustments EXHE - 9 17 - - 2
Additions HE 1,079 4412 873 4236 626 11,226
Disposals HeE (319 = = (1,365) = (1,684)
At 31 December 2013 RZB-=F
TZB=1-H 136,171 9,410 3219 4,622 4,126 157,548
Accumulated depreciation and SHTERAESS
impairment losses:
At 1 January 2013 R=E-=5-F-H 93122 2,621 1,329 1,689 97 98,858
Exchange adjustments EiA% — 7 17 - = %
Charge for the year ERiE 8,203 1121 217 498 1,217 11,262
Written back on disposal HEREE (169) — — (1,365) — (1,534)
At 31 December 2013 3
tZA=t-A 101,156 3,755 1,563 822 1,314 108,610
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 December 2013 WZE-ZF
tZA=1-H 35,015 5,655 1,656 3,800 2,812 48,938
The Group
15H
Audio
and visual Hardware Furniture Leasehold
equipment and software and fixtures  improvements Billboards Total
FERE FRRRK FHR%E HENERE &R &3t
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T i
Cost: A
At 1 January 2014 RZE-mE-F-A 136,171 9,410 3,219 4,622 4,126 157,548
Exchange adjustments EjBE - 9 (15) - - (24)
Additions HE 1,236 1,557 197 296 836 4122
At 31 December 2014 RZE-MF
TZB=1-H 137,407 10,958 3,401 4918 4,962 161,646
Accumulated depreciation and ZHTERAERE
impairment losses:
At 1 January 2014 RZE-BE-F-A 101,156 3,755 1,563 822 1,314 108,610
Exchange adjustments ERHEE - [l (15) - - (22)
Charge for the year ERE 8,256 1,614 KIK] 1,742 1,878 13,803
At 31 December 2014 R=B-mE
tZA=t-H 109,412 5,362 1,861 2,564 3,192 122,391
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 December 2014 R=5-mE
tZA=t-A 27,995 5,596 1,540 2,354 1,770 39,255
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14.Intangible assets

14.8BFEE

The Group
rEE
Website and
mobile apps
LR
FHEAREN
$'000
Fr
Cost: %N
At 1 January 2014 R-ZF—WF—HA—H =
Additions wE 2,930
At 31 December 2014 R=F-MF+=-A=+—-8 2,930
Accumulated amortisation: HET#EeE ¢
At 1 January 2014 R-Z—HNE—A—H —
Charge for the year FREE 489
At 31 December 2014 R-E—NWE+=-_B=+—H 489
Net book value REDEE
At 31 December 2014 R-ZE-—OF+=-A=+—H 2,441

15.Non-current prepayments and deposits

Non-current prepayments and deposits comprise
prepayments and deposits for purchase of fixed assets,
security for the due payment of licence fee and office
rental. The amounts are neither past due nor impaired.

16.MBARKRE

16.Investments in subsidiaries

15. FkRBEFRERES
RPDENRERERCOERBEATEER
BRI NNETERREEESNEN
HIERES - ZERBELES K HRRME o

The Company

PN
2014 2013
$'000 $'000
Fr T
Unlisted shares, at cost FEmEfm o RE 62,835 62,835

The following list contains the particulars of subsidiaries.
The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise
stated.

TREINMBRRNEH - B HEAIN
FrEs A (2 2B R A B B AR o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FAFE SRR RE
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(BREZBERIN - STRBEHE)

16.Investments in subsidiaries (continued) 16.MBARRE(H)
All of these are controlled subsidiaries as defined under FTEM B AR RN 1(d) T E &6 X E |
note 1(d) and have been consolidated into the Group's WEAR  HEBEEHALAEEHBHRERA
financial statements. mEstHE -
Particulars of Attributable equity
Place of issued and paid up interest (%)
incorporation/ capital EhREEIL)
Name of company operation BRTREHE direct indirect Principal activity
ARER Bl Ae-E3E RAFE B & TEEXK
AdSociety Advertising Agency ~ Hong Kong 2 shares — 100 Investment holding
Limited BA 2RRH RERR
AIREBESERAR
Bus Focus Limited The British Virgin Islands/ US$100 — 60 Provision of media sales
Hong Kong 100% 7% service for advertising on
RERLHE/EBA transit vehicle shelters
RUEREEHEEZZFEEN
REHERS
Bus Power Limited Hong Kong 1 share — 100 Provision of media sales
BiE 1REH service for advertising on
transit vehicle exteriors
and interiors
RURBEFEI IR
BERAHESH
REHERS
Cyberstop Limited The British Virgin Islands/ US$1 — 100 Holder of the registered
Hong Kong 1%£7% design and patent in relation
KBRLBE /BB to cyber bus stops
FEERREE LN
TR At R EA
KM-Vision Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares — 100 Dormant
B# 10,000 R &R 7 S
Leader Force Limited Hong Kong 1 share — 100 Provision of media sales
B 1RRAG service for advertising
on billboards
RERERESH
REHERY
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16.lnvestments in subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of

16.MBATRE (@)

Attributable equity

Place of issued and paid up interest (%)
incorporation/ capital EhRE(EIL)
Name of company operation BRTREMRE direct indirect Principal activity
DAEH SR BRAFE BR & FEEHR
LW-Vision Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares — 100 Dormant
& 10,000 A& 13 LB
MB-Vision Limited Hong Kong 2 shares — 100 Dormant
BA 2RBH HEex
Road Publications Limited Hong Kong 2 shares — 100 Trading of bus souvenirs
&# 2[R 17 CEBTRZRHEEEY
RoadShow Advertising (Beijing)  The PRC US$500,000 — 100 Provision of media advertising
Company Limited (limited HE 500,000 =7t agency service and design and
liability company) production of advertisements
EABES (L) ERAF RERERSAERER
(BEREART) EERTEEME
RoadShow Creations Limited Hong Kong 2 shares — 100 Trading of bus souvenirs
BB 2R Kt BEBTREMBEER
RoadShow Media Holdings The British Virgin Islands/ US$1 — 100 Investment holding
Limited Hong Kong 1%£7% REER
RERLHE /BB
RoadShow Media Limited Hong Kong 2 shares — 100 Provision of media sales &
B 2RBH management services for
advertising on transit vehicle
interiors and for BUS-TV business
REEESHEMABRERSEAR
BrERFBNERHEREERE
RoadShow Productions The British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 — 100 Investment holding
Holdings Limited Hong Kong (ES REER
REELEE/BE
RoadShow Productions Limited  Hong Kong 2 shares — 100 Events production and production
B 21RR 1D of content for BUS-TV systems

ERRFRAFBLERZERR

20145 3
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16.lnvestments in subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of

16.MBATRE (@)

Attributable equity

Place of issued and paid up interest (%)
incorporation/ capital EhRE(EIL)
Name of company operation BRTREMRE direct indirect Principal activity
DAEH SR BRAFE BR & FEEHR
RoadShow Resources Limited  The British Virgin Islands/ US$1 100 — Investment holding
Hong Kong 127 REER
REELHE/BH
RoadVision Holdings (China) The British Virgin Islands/ US$1 — 100 Investment holding
Limited Hong Kong 17 REER
RERLHE/BH
RoadVision Holdings Limited The British Virgin Islands/ Us$2 — 100 Investment holding
Hong Kong 2ET REER
REELRE/BH
RoadVision (Beijing) Limited The British Virgin Islands/ Uss$1 — 100 Investment holding
Hong Kong 127 REER
REELEHE/BE
RoadVision (Shanghai) Limited  The British Virgin Islands/ US$1 — 100 Investment holding
Hong Kong 17 REER
RERLHE/BE
RSG Resources Limited Hong Kong 2 shares — 100 Provision of employment
B 2RBH agency services
REBETNRYE
SB-Vision Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares — 95 Dormant
BB 10,000 B AR 47 TEex
Silver Sea Limited Hong Kong 1 share — 100 Provision of media sales
8 1Rk service for online advertising
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16.lnvestments in subsidiaries (continued)

The following table lists out the information relating
to Bus Focus Limited, the only subsidiary of the Group
which has material non-controlling interest (NCI). The

summarised financial information presented below B o

represents the amounts before any inter-company

elimination.

&)

16.MBATRE (4
TREINBEAEE M — %A EAETERE
# B M B A Al Bus Focus Limited 89& &} o
LTEVHNMEERBE SR RBEEHEAN

2014 2013
$'000 $'000
Fr T
NCI percentage FERESZA DL 40% 40%
Current assets REEE 35,145 34,543
Current liabilities nRBEE 8,645 10,280
Net assets BEEFE 26,500 24,263
Carrying amount of NCI FEEE R R AR EE 10,600 9,705
Revenue WA 79,488 63,522
Profit for the year REEZEF 15,238 9,424
Total comprehensive income S EN AR 15,238 9,424
Profit allocated to NCI D EFERESNEF 6,095 3,769
Dividend paid to NCI ENFHEREZNRE 5,200 4,000
Cash flows from operating activities REKSEHNRESRE 14,812 7,641
Cash flows from financing activities REMETHNREESRE (13,000) (10,000)
17.0ther financial assets 17. Bt SmEE
The Group
rEH
2014 2013
$'000 $'000
Fr T
Available-for-sale debt securities, at fair value RARBEIENATHEES
(listed outside Hong Kong) (note (a)) BEE(BBEINLET)
(HIZE (a)) 7,837 78,072
Unlisted available-for-sale equity interest, at REASBRER 85 BRI £
cost less impairment losses (note (b)) ™ Al i &S IR AE (i (b)) — —
Loans to investee (note (c)) WIREARER (M () — 25,611
Amount due from investee (note (c)) FERHIRE N B RIE
(FFEE (<)) — —
7,837 103,683
Less: other financial assets classified as W DEARBEEMNHM
current assets SRIEE
— Available-for-sale debt securities — OHEEEKES
(listed outside Hong Kong) (BBENHEH) (7.837) (69,948)
— Loans to investee — WIREARER — (25,611)
Other financial assets classified as PEAFERBEENHEM
non-current assets EREE — 8,124
20145  EABERARAR
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17.0ther financial assets (continued)

(a)

Available-for-sale debt securities, at fair value

At 31 December 2014, the listed debt security was
issued by a corporate entity with credit rating A-.
At 31 December 2013, the listed debt securities
were issued by corporate entities with credit ratings
ranging from BBB+ to AA+. At 31 December 2014
and 2013,

securities were neither past due nor impaired.

the Group’s available-for-sale debt

The available-for-sale debt security is due for
repayment in September 2015. Debt securities that
will mature within one year are classified as current

assets.

Unlisted available-for-sale equity interest, at cost
less impairment losses

At 31 December 2013,
equity interest was determined to be impaired.

the available-for-sale

Full impairment losses on unlisted available-for-
sale equity interest of $143,371,000 have been
recognised as at 31 December 2013. On 9 January
2014,

entered into an equity transfer agreement to sell

a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group

and transfer such equity interest to an independent
third party for RMB30,000,000 (equivalent to
$37,332,000). The entire equity interest has been
transferred as at 31 December 2014. Subsequent
to 31 December 2014,
consideration net of withholding tax of $4,444,000
has been received from the independent third party

the entire amount of

in connection with the transfer of such equity interest
(note 32(a)).
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17. 5 RMEE (&)

(a)

BAAEBEIIENIHEEERES
A—E—NE+—-A=+—H8 "  EmEH%
BHEREETRA-HEEEERET - B
—E—=F+-RA=+—H8 LTEXKE
HSHEENRNTBBB+EAA+H B X
FEET R-_E-—NER-_T—=4F
TZA=1+—RH AEEMIJHLEES
B 50 A B ok [ 3R R B

AHHEBEKRESN _T—AFNATH
BE - BN —FRIBNEBELZIER
MBEE °

BEEARREBEIENFELETIHEE
Bi% 7
RZE—=F+ZA=+—H  A#EE
BEWETHAETRE - FLMARKEE
fs ¥ /) & EOR (B B 18 143,371,000 7T A
—if—¢+ A=+ —BHER R
T-MFE-ANB AEENEZEN
BRAGTIUREEEGZ  UWRARK
30,000,000 7T (48 % 7 37,332,0007T )
M—EBLE=FHEREEHHAE -
2HRREER T —ENFE+=-A=+—H
BE N_T-—NFF+ZA=+—H#%
BRZBYLE=FREIREEZRENR
TEMR 4,444,000 82 H SR (T
32(a)) °



17.0Other financial assets (continued) 17.HEtEMEE(8)

(c) Loans to and amount due from investee
At 31 December 2013, the Group reassessed
the recoverability of the loans to investee and
considered that a portion of the loans would be
recovered within twelve months of the balance sheet
date. A reversal of impairment loss of $25,611,000
was recognised at 31 December 2013. During
the year ended 31 December 2014, an aggregate
of RMB20,000,000 (equivalent to $25,611,000)
was received from an independent third party in
connection with the transfer of the loans to and
amount due from investee. The remaining unsettled
balances of loans to and amount due from investee

were fully written off.

) BRHRERTANERKHNE

R-ZBE—=F+-A=+—0" A58
EFFEHRERANERM A Y E M -
TRAEFHNEZEREERERZ T =M@A
AlE @A ER-_ZT—=F+_-A
=+ B®#REE25,611,000 7T KR E
BiE - RBE-T—W&+=-A=+—H
IHFE  ERERRKEREARNER
RFBERR—EBUE=FALEARK
20,000,000 7T (%7 25,611,0007T) °
WIREDNRAEENBERRERFIEHEE
B 28U -

18.Inventories 18. 78

All of the inventories are finished goods of merchandise.

The amount of inventories recognised as an expense is

FREFEEHREMEKM °

BRASXHLNEESEWT

as follows:
The Group
AEE

2014 2013
$'000 $'000
Fr T
Carrying amount of inventories sold EHEFERAE 6,891 7,269
Write-down of inventories FE Mo 127 —
Reversal of write-down of inventories 13 [0 17 & ROm — (68)
7,018 7,201
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19.Amounts due from/(to) group companies

(a)

The amount due from ultimate holding company
is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed terms
of repayment. The amount is neither past due nor

impaired.

The amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment,
except for amounts due to certain subsidiaries of
$146,391,000 (2013: $126,411,000), which have no
fixed terms of repayment but are not expected to
be repaid within twelve months of the balance sheet
date.

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment
except for amounts due from certain subsidiaries
of $75,375,000 (2013: $72,558,000), which have no
fixed terms of repayment but are not expected to
be repaid within twelve months of the balance sheet
date.

At 31 December 2014, amounts due from certain
subsidiaries of $101,091,000 (2013: $126,669,000)
were determined to be impaired and impairment
losses of $101,091,000 (2013: $126,669,000) were

made.

The amounts due from/(to) fellow subsidiaries are
unsecured, interest-free, repayable on demand and
represent normal trade receivables and payables.
The amounts due from fellow subsidiaries are neither

past due nor impaired.
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19. Y (FER) EB A RFIE

(a)

(b)

R SRR R AR FRSERA RER
B R o RN EE M SRE

BRIEF 5/ T M B AR5 IE 146,391,000
TT(=Z—=4 : 126,411,000z ) I & &
TERY  ETEHNEEAR T @R
NEEIN BB ARFKEREIRE
REREETFENRE -

Bk & Ue = T B} /B 2 B ZUE 75,375,000 7T
(ZZT— =4 :72,558,0007T) W EETF
B ETHEERNGEERRTZEAR
BEN  BRHBARFEAEERE %
BREEFERE -

R-ZE—mWE+-A=+—0 BKET
Bt B A B E 101,091,000t (—ZE—=
F 126,669,000 WEEARME I
B £ 1+ 101,091,000 (=T — = F:
126,669,000 7T) BRI (EEE -

FEd (R ) B 2B A Rl KR R &K
2R ARERKER KRR
HP MR EMNIRR - %5 RAIR M8
NRIMFRIAY B EI S KB RE



20.Accounts receivable

(a)

Ageing analysis
Details of the ageing analysis of accounts receivable
that is neither individually nor collectively considered

to be impaired at the balance sheet date are as

20. B W AR K

(a)

AR 2 AT
REEH - WE IR E R kBB R ERNE
WRRSRE R DATREIB AN T

follows:
The Group
rEH
2014 2013
$'000 $'000
T Fr
Neither past due nor impaired b 38 B SR (E 65,933 87,116
Less than one month past due BELA—EAR 35,248 26,038
One to two months past due B —Z=m{EA 14,147 13,572
Two to three months past due BEME={AA 12,023 6,107
More than three months but less than BHEBR=EAEIRN—F

one year past due 15,789 11,944
More than one year past due mEBR—F 3,270 546
146,410 145,323

According to the Group's credit policy set out in
note 26(a), credit period granted to customers is
generally within 90 days. Therefore, all the balances
which are not past due as disclosed above are within

three months from the invoice date.

All of the accounts receivable are expected to be

recovered within one year.

Impairment of accounts receivable

Impairment losses in respect of accounts receivable
are recorded using an allowance account unless the
Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount is
remote, in which case the impairment loss is written

off against accounts receivable directly.

RIBM FE26(a) B A KB HEEERK -
—RBRETEFPNEEHA/I0AR - Al
A LXABEBENRARERINERA
HER=EANEH -

R A REERSE R —FRkE -

FE 1 B R 1R

FEN R KR EREE S AR - BRIk
AEBEEKOZSEOREERMN - Rt
BRT - BEREE X AR -
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20.Accounts receivable (continued)

(b) Impairment of accounts receivable (continued)

20. FE WL BR AR (48)
(b) F& U B KR 1B (1)

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts FARBRBENZESHOT
during the year is as follows:
The Group
AEH
2014 2013
$'000 $'000
Fr Fr
At 1 January W—H—H — =
Impairment loss recognised EREZRNEERE 364 —
364 —

At 31 December 2014, the Group's accounts
receivable of $364,000 was individually determined
to be impaired (2013: $Nil). The individually
impaired receivable related to a customer that was
in financial difficulty and management assessed that
the receivable is not expected to be recovered.
Consequently, an impairment loss is provided for
and written off against the accounts receivable
directly. The Group does not hold any collateral
over such balance. At 31 December 2013, none of
the Group’s accounts receivable was individually
determined to be impaired.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a wide range of customers for whom there

was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired
relate to a number of independent customers that
have a good track record with the Group. Based
on past experience, management believes that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable. The Group does not

hold any collateral over these balances.

The Group's credit policy is set out in note 26(a) to
the financial statements.
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R-ZE-—WE+-_A=+—R0 KEEfE
WBR K 364,000(ZFT—=F: Tx)
BEEREE ABEERME - ERIREEK
ERDEENVBRRENEFEHE - BF
B BN REERA A EARE - &
bt EREURERFGETREBBEEBLR
ERERPEEME R —=F+=
A=+—8  AXEETEERET AEE
BB A FE AR K -

b 42 60 2 kRl (B RO R M FRIR D B S R Bl
I B RS TP B/

BB EARRE N Y IR T A T EA
SERARIFFRTENBLEP AR -
RERBEER  EEEBHEARZSTER

BRIEHBERE - AEELRAZFEH
RAEMERRD o

AEENEEBRRIEN Y EHRERME26
(a) °



21.Pledged bank deposits

Pursuant to certain licence agreements between
subsidiaries of the Company and fellow subsidiaries and
between subsidiaries of the Company and independent
third parties, bank guarantees have been provided to
the fellow subsidiaries and the third parties in respect
of the subsidiaries’ due performance and payment
under the respective licence agreements. The Company
has pledged bank deposits of $61,400,000 (2013:
$61,400,000) to banks for the bank guarantees issued.

22.Bank deposits and cash

21. EEFRTER

BEARAMBARERRKERRTILK

AARIWE AR EBTE

=HERAMET

B CREZERTNEB AR
BHETOEERMR  FHUAZZFRRK
BRAME=ZTRXHEANRITER AR
AR AT & B RITERARTERRITER
61,400,0007t(= & — = % : 61,400,000

B

22 BITERRRE

The Group The Company
rEH RATH
2014 2013 2014 2013
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr T T T
Cash at bank and in hand RITERREE 190,199 108,093 625 2,533
Bank deposits with original FREHBEA=1ER AN
maturities within three RATEM
months 71,947 51,160 71,947 —
Cash and cash equivalents for BEHRESFRERM S M
the purpose of cash flow REeRREZEYD
statement 262,146 159,253
Bank deposits with original REBHARBB=(EAHN
maturities over three RATIF
months 176,670 199,813 64,350 97,493
438,816 359,066 136,922 100,026
23.Accounts payable 23. B ERX
Details of the ageing analysis of accounts payable at the REER  BNERFROKRESMFEET
balance sheet date are as follows:
The Group
AEH
2014 2013
$'000 $'000
T T
Due within one month — 18 A AEIH 2,913 1,592
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23.Accounts payable (continued)

Credit period granted to the Group by suppliers is
generally within 90 days. Therefore, all the balances
which are due within one month above are within three

months from the invoice date.

All of the accounts payable are expected to be settled

within one year.

24.lncome tax in the consolidated balance sheet

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated balance
sheet represents:

23. B BRM(4)

HEF - RETFTAEENEEHRI0AB -
It A B — 18 A R R B e A R 0 B
FERHER=EAREIH -

R A BNRSFER —F R8I -

20 RGEEERERNAENR
(a) FIRGEREERBRNAHMBES !

The Group
rEE
2014 2013
$'000 $'000
Fr T
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax REEEBNERER
for the year 3,399 16,541
Provisional Profits Tax paid ENEHFEH (16,347) (16,318)
(12,948) 223
PRC income tax payable BRHEIFEH 500 454
(12,448) 677
Reconciliation to consolidated balance sheet: RGEEEESEZHK -
The Group
AEH
2014 2013
$'000 $'000
Fr Fr
Current tax recoverable recognised in the R EEEERERY
consolidated balance sheet FEWR A BA R 1E (14,098) (1,078)
Current tax payable recognised in the R EEABREIN
consolidated balance sheet FE{S A ERF 1 1,650 1,755
(12,448) 677

126 | RoadShow Holdings Limited ~Annual Report 2014



24.Income tax in the consolidated balance sheet

(continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised:

The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities)

recognised in the consolidated balance sheet and

the movements during the year are as follows:

0 IRREEERBRNAEHR ()

(b) ERRBWELBEEE (BF) :

HEEERBRRANDERANECEHEELE
J(BE)ERBHRRENNL N
T

The Group
rEE

Depreciation

allowances in

excess of

related
depreciation Tax losses Total

BHERRE
HiTEES BBEE st
$'000 $'000 $'000
T Tr Fr
At 1 January 2013 R=ZT—=%F—H—H (6,013) 8,474 2,461
Credited to profit or loss EEBERFTA 447 733 1,180
At 31 December 2013 N-ZE—=+—-_A=+—H (5,566) 9,207 3,641
At 1 January 2014 A—E—FE—HA—H (5.566) 9,207 3,641
Credited/(charged) to profit or loss HEEHFARFA(FX) 860 (315) 545
At 31 December 2014 R-ZE-—WNF+-_A=+—H (4,706) 8,892 4,186

Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance

REREERBRERNSHE

sheet:
The Group
REE

2014 2013
$'000 $'000
Fr T
Net deferred tax assets FEIERIBEEFE 4,311 3,770
Net deferred tax liabilities EERIEEEFEE (125) (129)
4,186 3,641
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24.Income tax in the consolidated balance sheet
(continued)

(c)

Deferred tax assets not recognised:

In accordance with the accounting policy set out
in note 1(n), the Group and the Company have not
recognised deferred tax assets of $9,972,000 (2013:
$14,859,000) and $320,000 (2013: $11,874,000)
in respect of cumulative tax losses of $60,434,000
(2013: $90,057,000) and $1,936,000 (2013:
$71,963,000), respectively, as it is not probable
that future taxable profits against which the losses
can be utilised will be available in the relevant tax
jurisdiction and entity. At 31 December 2014 and
2013, the tax losses do not expire under the current

tax legislation.

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised:

At 31 December 2014, temporary differences
relating to the undistributed profits of a subsidiary
amounted to $6,919,000 (2013: $4,626,000).
Deferred tax liabilities of $692,000 (2013: $463,000)
have not been recognised in respect of the tax
that would be payable on the distribution of these
retained profits as the Company controls the
dividend policy of this subsidiary and it has been
determined that it is probable that profits will not be

distributed in the foreseeable future.
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0 IRREEERBRNAEHR ()

(c)

AERNELEHBELEE :
RIEHMEE 1) BB - AREH
RTS Al A & B B8N K A] A 3R AT A A
HHEEBENARERRAT  MAEER
AN QA I EF D F60,434,000 (= F
— =4 :90,057,0007T) &% 1,936,000 7T
(ZZT— =% :71,963,0007T) 8 2t Fi
BEE®ER9,972,000(ZE—=4:
14,859,0007T ) &320,000t(=F—=
% :11,874,000 ) WELEHIBEE - 1
TE-NER T Z=ZF+-_F=+—
B REBERITREED - B E BRI E
wme e

AERNWELHBEEE

R_ZE—NFE+-_A=+—H ' B#H—
BB RARAAD RBFNEREEZES
6,919,000 (= & — = 4 : 4,626,000
JC) o RN D AR HI R M B A R AR B
B - szt A Bl AT R A% SRR K AT Bk
TregoRBH @ Hit - TEKEDIKZFR
B RN R FE S H B IE # 58 692,000 7T
(ZZT— =% : 463,000 ) ELTHIBEE

& e



25.Capital and reserves

(a) Movements in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and

5. BAR#ES

(a) BRESAKBHNES
AEBGA R S AR BY)EB RS

closing balances of each component of the Group’s ROHFEHNGEREZLEBR - ARFE
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated 1B 23 4B B BR 19 70 A8 F 2 HA 4] % B R 69
statement of changes in equity. Details of the EEFEHINNT
changes in the Company’s individual components
of equity between the beginning and the end of the
year are set out below:
The Company
NG|
Share Share Contributed ~ Accumulated
capital premium surplus losses Total
B REEE EaaEs RitER @t
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
i i i T i
Balance at 1 January 2013 MN=—ZE—=%5—H—H
R &R 99,737 531,769 62,635 (236,840) 457,301
Changes in equity for 2013: —E-=FEREE
Loss and total comprehensive ~ AFEFHER ZHE U
income for the year zE — = = (2,279) (2.279)
Share premium reduction IR 15 S5 1B IR - (531,769) 531,769 = =
Dividend approved in respect of BE EFEEHL AR
the previous year BRE = = = (74,802) (74,802)
Balance at 31 December 2013 RZ-T—=4%
and 1 January 2014 +=A=+—-HBkK
—E-mNF¥—-A—H
H S ER 99,737 - 594,404 (313,921) 380,220
Changes in equity for 2014: —E-UFEREREE
Profit and total comprehensive ~ AFERBFI R HE U
income for the year e - — — 97,746 97,746
Dividend approved in respect of B E EFEE HEAEH
the previous year BRE — — — (79,191) (79,191)
Balance at 31 December 2014 R_-ZT—UFE+_5
=+— B4 99,737 — 594,404 (295,366) 398,775
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25.Capital and reserves (continued)

5. BAR#ES(E)

(b) Share capital (b) B
2014 2013
Number of Number of
shares shares
R EE RHEHE
‘000 $'000 ‘000 $'000
TR T T B2 T
Authorised: ERE
Ordinary shares of $0.1 HREEO.1 T
each TER 10,000,000 1,000,000 10,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITREHRE :
At 31 December R+=—BA=+—H 997,365 99,737 997,365 99,737

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive

dividends as declared from time to time and are

entitled to one vote per share at general meetings

of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally

with regard to the Company’s residual assets.

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i) Share premium

The application of the share premium account

is governed by the Company’s Bye-laws and the

Bermuda Companies Act 1981.

On 13 May 2013, a special resolution was passed

at a special general meeting approving the

reduction of the share premium of the Company
by $531,769,000 (“Share Premium Reduction”)
and the transfer of the credit arising from the

Share Premium Reduction to other distributable

reserves.
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25.Capital and reserves (continued)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

General reserve

General reserve is provided by each of the
Group’'s PRC subsidiaries at 10% of their
net profit after tax, based on the respective

subsidiary’s PRC statutory financial statements.

The general reserve can be used to set off any
accumulated losses or converted into paid-up

capital of the respective subsidiary.

Contributed surplus

Pursuant to a group reorganisation in 2001,
the Company became the holding company of
the Group. The excess of the consolidated net
assets represented by the shares acquired over
the nominal value of the shares issued by the
Company in exchange under the reorganisation
in 2001 was transferred to contributed surplus.
Under the Bermuda Companies Act 1981,
contributed surplus is available for distribution

to shareholders.

On 13 May 2013, a special resolution was passed
in a special general meeting approving the
reduction of the share premium of the Company
by $531,769,000 and the transfer of the credit
arising from the Share Premium Reduction to

other distributable reserves.

Other reserve

In 2007, the Group entered into an agreement
with a fellow subsidiary to acquire the remaining
8% equity interests in a subsidiary, KM-Vision
Limited at a consideration of $1,211,000,
resulting in a premium of $605,000. The
additional investment was accounted for as
an equity transaction and the premium was
recognised directly in shareholders’ equity.

5. BAR#ES(E)

(c) RETNMEER AR
(i) —REE
AEBEERBEMBRRHARERRH
MELANTEEEMBRRAEN
FRETEATTIE) 10% B A — MR FE -

— MR AT AR ] RET B 1Ak
ERERANBARNESRRA -

(iii) B # & &t
BE-ZT-—FHEEEA - KA
KAEAEBNZERAR - GREEEF
BRAEFMEROHBEHARRBR-ZZ
T-FRESHAEERRMET
MRHEE ZSRHKREBAEZHER
%o REBEBREE-NN\—F(REE)
BT BERBBRAIKETRER -

R-Z—=FRA+=H  ERK
RENASLEAB—EENAR
B UMEEIBRARARKRG & E
531,769,000 7t & % B% 17 4 (B Bl &k 22
EREREREHEMA T HIRER

(iv) R 1@
REEBR-_ZZLFH-BERKHB
AR)EE] —EWE - bA1,211,000 7T
AR (B Uk BB EL A B B 2 7] KM-Vision
Limited ¥ 2 K1 8% M AR ¥ - FTE &
% 18 5 605,000 7T © Lt EEIMEE THIA
R ZHE  ZEEERRREER
R o
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25.Capital and reserves (continued)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(v)

(vi)

Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative
net change in the fair value of available-for-
sale debt securities held at the balance sheet
date and is dealt with in accordance with the

accounting policy set out in note 1(e).

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of operations
outside Hong Kong. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in

note 1(s).

(vii) Distributability of reserves

At 31 December 2014, the aggregate amount of
reserves available for distribution to shareholders
of the Company was $299,038,000 (2013:
$280,483,000). After the balance sheet date, the
Directors proposed a final dividend of 3.85 cents
per ordinary share (2013: 7.94 cents per share),
amounting to $38,399,000 (2013: $79,191,000)
and a special dividend of 4.10 cents per ordinary
share (2013: Nil cent per share), amounting to
$40,892,000 (2013: $Nil) (note 11(a)). The final
dividend and special dividend have not been
recognised as a liability at the balance sheet
date.

(d) Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing

capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to

continue as a going concern, so that it can continue

to provide returns for shareholders and benefits

for

other stakeholders, by pricing products and

services commensurately with the level of risk and by

securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.
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(vi) SME 15
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RIRHIEE 1(s) B B AT BUREHE -

(Vii) 1B £ B9 7] 5 JF 14
R-ZE—WF+=—A=+—H" 7
DPEFTARABRENFEES B
£299,038,000t(= T — = F:

280,483,0007C ) 4 %tEMéfa 5

ZFRBERARS

EE: f% 3.85 1l
(—2—=%: GH]7 941m> @
21 /38,399,000 L(= & — = F:

79,191,000 7T) * A R4 RIAR B &A%
2@

410@&%—2@@@@)
540,892,000 L(ZE—=F: Z
7o) (MtEE11(a)) o Wﬁ:ﬁ C REARE
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25.Capital and reserves (continued)

(d) Capital management (continued)
At 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group did not
have any bank borrowings. The Group had bank
deposits and cash balance as at 31 December 2014
amounting to $438,816,000 (2013: $359,066,000).

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholder returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital

structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

26.Financial risk management and fair values of
financial instruments

The Group is exposed to credit, liquidity, interest rate
and currency risks arising from the normal course of its
business. These risks are limited by the Group’s financial

management policies and practices described below.

(a) Credit risk
The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to
accounts receivable and other receivables and listed
debt securities. Management has a credit policy in
place and the exposures to these credit risks are

monitored on an ongoing basis.

ARENHEXBEREEL(RES
T MEREBER ZERBRE THRAE
BB 75 B R R RMOR IR I o

5. BRAR@EE(E)
(d) EXEE(E)

R_E-—NER-_F—=F+=-A=+—
B AEEVETMETEE - AEER
—E-ME+-A=+—BNBETEX
N384 4554 5 438,816,000 (- T —=
F : 359,066,0007T) °

AEERER B L EARBRERS
RER - WERERRERER T T
B0 f K T B R T ) A AR B
B RRE 2 RGTE « It R
BHNORCHRARBEL B -

26 I BEREEREBMIANAAREE

E -RBE

(a) EERMK

AEENEERRE2XARERRLE
EWER R EHERES - EEEBR
—HEERR T ERAERELERA
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26.Financial risk management and fair values of
financial instruments (continued)

(a)

Credit risk (continued)

Investments made are normally only in liquid
securities quoted on a recognised stock exchange,
except where entered into for long term strategic
purposes. Given the high credit standing of the
counterparties, management does not expect
any investment counterparty to fail to meet its
obligations, except for those on which impairment
losses have been made.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
Customers of media sales business are generally
granted credit terms of 90 days while customers of
merchandising business either pay on delivery or
are generally granted credit terms of 30 to 90 days.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from
customers.

Bank deposits and cash at bank are normally placed
with licensed banks that have credit ratings equal
to or better than the Group. Given their high credit
ratings, management does not expect any licensed
bank to fail to meet its obligations.

The Group has not provided any guarantee which
would expose the Group or the Company to credit
risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group's exposure to credit risk arising from accounts
receivable are set out in note 20.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group
are responsible for their own cash management,
including the raising of loans to cover expected cash
demands, subject to approval by the Company’s
Board of Directors when the borrowings exceed
certain predetermined levels of authority. The
Group's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet its

liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.
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26.Financial risk management and fair values of
financial instruments (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

(c)

The Company also monitors closely the cash
flows of its subsidiaries. Generally, the Company’s
subsidiaries are required to obtain the Company’s
approval for activities such as investment of surplus
cash, raising of loans and settlement of suppliers’

invoices beyond certain limits.

At the balance sheet date, the Group’s and the
Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities
which are required to be repaid within one year
or on demand amounted to $55,130,000 (2013:
$49,757,000) and $197,893,000 (2013: $224,040,000)
respectively.

The Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities
which are not expected to be repaid within twelve
months of the balance sheet date amounted to
$146,391,000 (2013: $126,411,000).

Interest rate risk

It is the Group’s policy to monitor market conditions
closely and devise suitable strategies against interest
rate risk. The Group regularly reviews its strategy
on interest rate risk management in the light of the

prevailing market condition.

26 iIBEREEREBMIANAAREE
(&)

(b) RBE & R (H)

ARBNEBENERENBLRANRE R
8o —RME  AARMKERAARIA

TRHERE  BEERLBFABERE
TERNEERHZERSZEHRE AR A
o

REER  NEBREAQARFETE
BEEER— ﬁW&EAKIHTEi)
2 Bl 555,130,000 (= & — = F:
49,757,000 7T ) & 197,893, ooo T(Z &
— =% :224,040,0007T) °

$/‘ﬂ%3ﬁiﬁ$$%ﬂa§?(%ﬁiﬁw@# &
A% T _@MARNEE)AE146,391,000
T(ZZE—=%:126,411,0007T) °
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26.Financial risk management and fair values of
financial instruments (continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued)
(i) Interest rate profile
The following table details the interest rate
profile of the Group’s and the Company's
interest bearing assets and liabilities at the
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balance sheet date.

26 MBEEAREEREMTIANDIAEE

(%)

(c) FI=REkg @

(i)

FEH#R

TRAVWARERARRREER
AAEREERAENMEER -

Eq

2014 2013
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate p.a. rate p.a.
BRERE BERFRI=E
% $'000 % $'000
Aok Tt Btk Tt
The Group AEH
Fixed rate assets: EEFMEEE :
Other financial assets Hit e mEE
— available-for-sale — AHEEER
debt securities x5 4.1 7,837 4.0 78,072
Bank deposits (including RTER(EBHEEE
pledged deposits) HER) 2.3 310,017 2.1 312,373
317,854 390,445
Variable rate assets: ZEFFELE -
Cash at bank RITIER 0.2 100,014 0.1 55,849
The Company RATH
Fixed rate assets: B EFIFEEE -
Bank deposits (including BITER(BEEE
pledged deposits) HIER) 1.8 197,697 1.3 158,893
Variable rate assets: FEFELE -
Cash at bank BITEX 0.0 238 0.0 1,256




26 IBEREEREMIANAAEBE

(%)

(c) FI=REkg @
(ii) BUBEDH

26.Financial risk management and fair values of
financial instruments (continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued)
(ii) Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2014, it is estimated that a
general increase/decrease of 100 basis points
in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, would have increased/decreased the
Group's profit after tax and retained profits by
approximately $865,000 (2013: $519,000). Other
components of consolidated equity would have
decreased/increased by approximately $53,000
(2013: $434,000) in response to the general

increase/decrease in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group's profit/
loss after tax (and retained profits) and other
components of consolidated equity that would
arise assuming that the change in interest rates
had occurred at the balance sheet date and
had been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose
the Group to fair value interest rate risk at the
balance sheet date. In respect of the exposure
to cash flow interest rate risk arising from
floating rate non-derivative instruments held by
the Group at the balance sheet date, the impact
on the Group’s profit/loss after tax (and retained
profits) and other components of consolidated
equity is estimated as an annualised impact on
interest income of such a change in interest
rates. The analysis is performed on the same
basis as for 2013.

N—_E—NF+_A=+—H &
R R ELEE N, H L 100 EEL
BEMBEEMEERFTIE K&
B ap & AT KRB EF &M
/R #865,000(ZE—=4 :
519,0007L) - MELREFA " TH
152 B AR S B 0 E A48 K #B1D R
b/ NN# 53,000 (ZE— =4 :
434,0007T) °

P GURE ST BN E AR R EE R
HREHACREENTEAKEMR
FeMIA(SAEEREEREY
[ABEMNERR)  BAEENK
REEMN/EBR(RERN) KRGS
FE 2 O B At AR A BB 4 7 1 3R RO B B 2
P HNBEASENEERRFEEF
BAXENTEMIAMEENRS
MENXKE R - HAEERTIREF
SEBR(RREBERN) RGaERNHE
AR BRI O & - DA R B ¥ 7
BRANFEREFEELERT - DT
AR T -—FHRANMER -
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26.Financial risk management and fair values of

financial instruments (continued)

(d) Currency risk

The following table details the Group’s and the
Company’s exposure at the balance sheet date
to currency risk arising from recognised assets or
liabilities denominated in a currency other than the

functional currency of the entity to which they relate.

26 iIBEREEREBMIANAAREE

(%)

(d)

B Ek

TRHANAEERARREAERAREY
REEBMINEBESEMIIENEERAR
MR EE B AAARENEREER

Exposure to foreign currencies S B
(expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BB HE
2014 2013
UsD RMB uUsD RMB
EJH AR ET AR
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Ft Tt Tt Tt
The Group AEE
Other financial assets HithemERE 7,837 — 78,072 25,611
Other receivables and HibENERA R Z®
deposits —_ 32,888 — —
Pledged bank deposits BIRBRITER 58,700 1,500 59,000 1,200
Bank deposits and cash BITERARRS 91,656 65,385 80,643 13,071
158,193 99,773 217,715 39,882
The Company AT
Pledged bank deposits BIRFRITER 58,700 1,500 59,000 1,200
Bank deposits and cash BITFARES 60,670 65,385 74,284 13,071
119,370 66,885 133,284 14,271

In addition, the Group is exposed to currency risk
arising from inter-company receivables and payables
denominated in Renminbi which is not the functional
currency of either the lender or the borrower.
The net inter-company receivables amounted to
RMB122,531,000 as at 31 December 2014 (2013:
RMB122,836,000).

The following table indicates how an appreciation in
Renminbi against Hong Kong dollar at the balance
sheet date would have affected the Group’s results

for the year and other components of equity.
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26.Financial risk management and fair values of 26 . BIHKEREERSHMIANAIAEE

financial instruments (continued) (&)
(d) Currency risk (continued) (d) E¥EE (&)
2014 2013
Increase in Increase in
Increase profit for Effect on Increase profit for Effect on
in foreign the year other in foreign the year other
exchange and retained components exchange and retained components
rate profits of equity rate profits of equity
EEE HEMER rEE HEMES
BRARRE ARG BARRE i)
ExiEm BAE M i EXiEm BREM i
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr T Tr T
The Group rEH
Renminbi AR 3% 7,587 - 3% 5,917 —
A weakening in Renminbi against Hong Kong dollar HMAREEBEHNEZNEEANUERE
by the same percentage at the balance sheet date DT - AIBAREENRNFEEERT
would have had an equal but opposite effect on the REAZFEERTZE -

Group's results for the year.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change HRESMIBRREXSERNEREHHE
in foreign exchange rate had been applied to re- o WRAREFAERAEEMFRNZS
measure those financial instruments held by the PRITH MzEIASAESEREEH
Group which expose the Group to currency risk at HEINERR  BEEEANRRENUNER
the balance sheet date, including inter-company ARERA B AN G T E
payables and receivables within the Group which are TR N R BR X - R B (R 7€ P A L i &
denominated in a currency other than the functional %((t/\ﬂzﬂ’ JEFTE - gt s - K
currencies of the lender or the borrower, and that SERERETHEMEREENETAEZ
all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain 7 “%‘fb%ﬁi@%ﬁﬁ’] tBRIEREAB K
constant. In this respect, it is assumed that the T8 FRAISTERREEAEERE
linked rate between the Hong Kong dollar and the BREAUNEDGEEBTENRTRER
United States dollar would be materially unaffected &ﬁéﬁﬁﬁ’lw AR E IEHZ,\D#HE’JLTT
by any changes in movement in value of the United REBKBTRIERS AR - DITEE
States dollar against other currencies. Results of the ?@f? —=FARER -

analysis as presented in the above table represent
an aggregation of the effects on each of the Group
entities’ results after tax and equity measured in
their respective functional currencies, translated into
Hong Kong dollar at the exchange rate ruling at the
balance sheet date for presentation purposes. The
analysis has been performed on the same basis as
for 2013.
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26.Financial risk management and fair values of
financial instruments (continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

Renminbi is not a fully convertible currency. All
foreign exchange transactions involving Renminbi
must take place either through the People’s Bank of
China or other institutions authorised to buy and sell

foreign currencies.

Fair values measurement
(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair

value

HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement categorised
recurring fair value measurement of the Group’s
financial instruments at the balance sheet date
into the three-level fair value hierarchy. The level
into which a fair value measurement is classified
is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the

valuation technique as follows:

Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets

or liabilities at the measurement date.

Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs
are inputs for which market data are not

available.

Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using

significant unobservable inputs.

At 31 December 2014,

instruments of the Group carried at fair value

the only financial

were available-for-sale debt securities of
$7,837,000 (2013: $78,072,000) (see note 17).
Recurring fair value measurements of these
instruments are categorised into Level 1 of the
fair value hierarchy described above.
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26.Financial risk management and fair values of
financial instruments (continued)

(e) Fair values measurement (continued)

(f)

(i)

(ii)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2014, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2,
or transfers into or out of Level 3 (2013: Nil). The
Group's policy is to recognise transfers between
levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the

reporting period in which they occur.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
carried at other than fair value

All financial instruments carried at cost or
amortised cost are carried at amounts not
materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2014 and 2013 except that amounts
due from/to ultimate holding company, fellow
subsidiaries and subsidiaries of the Group and
the Company are unsecured, interest-free and
have no fixed repayment terms. Given these
terms it is not meaningful to disclose their fair

values.

Estimation of fair values

Fair values of listed available-for-sale debt securities

are based on quoted market prices at the balance

sheet date without any deduction for transaction

costs.

26 IBEREEREMIANAAEBE

(%)

(f)

REBEE-ZFT-HNF+-_HA=1t—H
HFEE FIREF2HE AL ES
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27.Commitments 27 .7KIE
(a) BAEE
R-EBE—NE+-_A=+—H  KXEEW
AR ERAELBEENEEBEEETE

(a) Capital commitments
At 31 December 2014, the Group had the following
capital commitments in relation to the purchase

of fixed assets not provided for in the financial BEMNBEARAENT :
statements:
2014 2013
$'000 $'000
T ST
Contracted for ERITENE — =
Authorised but not contracted for B EBDMRBTSNE 111,006 111,006
111,006 111,006
(b) Operating lease commitments (b) Re&HERE
At 31 December 2014, the Group's total future RZE—NE+-_A=+—H KEERE

minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of property and

equipment are payable as follows:

BEBYERERBONINAZHLEHER

NHRRZEHSEBEWT

2014 2013

$'000 $'000

T Tt

Within 1 year —FR 4,968 6,581
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRBREFR 621 3,373
5,589 9,954

The Group leases property and equipment under
operating leases. The leases run for an initial period
of 1 to 5 years, with an option to renew the leases
when all terms are renegotiated. The leases do not

include any contingent rentals.
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27.Commitments (continued)

(c) Other commitments

Certain exclusive licences to (i) conduct media sales
management services for BUS-TV business operated
by The Kowloon Motor Bus Company (1933) Limited
(“"KMB”) and Long Win Bus Company Limited
("Long Win"), (ii) to conduct media sales agency
and management business on selected bus shelters,
(i) to solicit advertising business in respect of the
interior and exterior panels of buses operated by
KMB and Long Win, (iv) to solicit advertising business
on billboards owned by the government of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region have been
granted to the Group, and (v) to solicit advertising
business on billboards and other advertising spaces
owned by other independent third parties, and the
respective licences will expire in periods ranging
from 2015 to 2020. Under such licences, the Group
has committed to pay licence fees or royalty fees at
a pre-determined percentage of the net advertising
rental received, subject to a guaranteed minimum
amount. The future minimum guaranteed licence

fees and royalty fees are payable as follows:

27 RE ()
(c) HthA¥E

AEBEERSRE TORLEE T
(—h==)BRAARA(TAE ) KkEEE
TERQB(EEDMEENELER
EBEREABHETERS  ()AFE
ErrE=RHEABHEEREREESE
Bo(imhEREEREENELNE
AR ESINBESMETES RS -
(VLB BFITHREBRGESNESR
ETEEER  MVWREMBIE=7
BENBEEREEMESETESRR
HRRTE  SNEFERN T _F—4F
E-T_THFEHHEIY - REZFH
B ARECAREMEERESHEESFR
MBELAEEAD LBNRKHFEXRENE
HAXHRERBEEMR - RRRIERE
B ERENERZENT

2014 2013
$'000 $'000

Fr Fr

Within 1 year —FR 204,776 148,108
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRBREER 296,687 173,179
Over 5 years HBiARE 1,148 —
502,611 321,287

The above licences typically run for an initial period
of 24 to 72 months, and certain of the licences
contain an option to renew the licence when all

terms are renegotiated.

B R R — R TR B IR 24 £ 72
R BETHIERESEEXFTEN
BB EERHERATENRRE
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28.Employee retirement benefits

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “"MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme
is a defined contribution retirement plan administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme,
the employer and its employees are each required to
make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of $30,000 ($25,000 prior to June 2014).
Contributions to the MPF Scheme vest immediately.

As stipulated by the regulations of the PRC, the Group
participates in employee pension schemes organised
by the local governments under which the Company’s
subsidiaries are governed. Details of the schemes of the

Group are as follows:

Administrator

Beneficiary

28. EERIKEF

AEBRBEESCRHMEAESHEEO)A
EREBCERBIE)MmES RS R AH
MRAESHE(RESHE ]  BEBESE
EIREREIRNKEE BB EAREE
BoRERESTE EXHEEEHAKE
THEEREEFBRASHHNER  MEBAE
U A B R A30,000 (= —mMENA
Al _EMR % 25,0007T) © TSR TIENRERE -

BRETFBEER  AEE2EBHEARBN
BREAMMTBATERNEERKESEE -
AEBOETEIFHBWT -

Contribution rate (Note)

EEA LR (BfEE)
2014 2013
Beijing Social Security Fund Management Centre Employees 20% 20%

ERTHERBESEEF O

Note:

Under the scheme, the Group and its employees are each
required to make a contribution to the scheme at 20% and 8%
of a pre-determined amount.
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29.Material related party transactions

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed

elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group has

the following related party transactions during the year:

9. BREATHNEARRS
BRATBHREREMBNARENR S R EH

HR

AEEBRFABATEREALNRS !

2014 2013
Note $'000 $'000
B =E Fr Fr
Licence fee and service fees for B ERERSTR
conducting BUS-TV business REE (i) 19,242 20,197
Licence and royalty fees paid for the right FEELDLIRBEZES
to sell advertising space on bus shelters A AINEHFRENE (ii) 23,997 20,169
Licence fee for the right to solicit RE L HEREARESET
advertising business at advertising EEERNEFNNISHTE
space on bus interiors (iii) 13,833 12,167
Licence fee for the right to solicit RETEGIBESET
advertising business at advertising [BEE B RER ST E
space on bus exteriors (iv) 67,500 60,500
Rental expenses HEER (v) 4,612 8,260
Management fee and sales rebate EEBERHEELDN (vi) 28,916 22,614
Service fee paid for logistic function BB RIS AT RIS E (vii) 490 490
Mobile data subscription fees RBEIERFE (viii) 2,120 2,296
Key management personnel remuneration FZEEASEE (ix) 12,010 11,750

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Licence fee and service fees were paid to subsidiaries
of Transport International Holdings Limited (“TIH"), a
substantial shareholder of the Company for conducting
BUS-TV advertising business on buses operated by KMB
and fitted with the BUS-TV broadcasting system. The
amount payable by the Group at the year end amounted to
$5,960,000 (2013: $4,360,000).

Licence and royalty fees were paid for selling advertising
spaces on certain bus shelters owned by a subsidiary of
TIH. The amount payable by the Group at the year end
amounted to $846,000 (2013: $1,692,000).

Licence fee was paid to a subsidiary of TIH for soliciting
advertising business in respect of the interior panels and
other interior spaces inside the compartments of buses
operated by KMB. The amount payable by the Group at
the year end amounted to $2,977,000 (2013: amounts
receivable of $1,106,000).

Licence fee was paid to a subsidiary of TIH for marketing,
displaying and maintaining advertisements at the exterior
panels of the bodies of buses operated by KMB. The
amount receivable by the Group arising from advance
payments made at the year end amounted to $8,288,000
(2013: $26,227,000).

Bt

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

BRHBRREEEERAEBAEENE L EHE
TERERERRETETEREEEB M TA
AR EERRFBEABIEBERAA(THEB) M
MEBARINER - REXR AEEENNRIEA
5,960,000 L (=& —=4 : 4,360,000 7C) °

B REFBREREEHBNBRARMEEDN
ETEITREZEESMAIHFNER - REX
N5 B B T ) 7R IB A 846,000 T( — T — =4 :
1,692,000 7T) °

BHBEERRNEMEENE TWERALE
SR EMERAPLEETESEESIMNTF
HBEHNBARNER - RER AEEEMNK
HIEE2,977,000 0 (ZE—=F: EWFHEAL
1,106,000 7T) °

RABRERTSER BREEFESERNAE
g ENBELINESGIBESN AN TEHB
MEBARIWER - RFER AEEBEMNREBHR
AR EWFRIEA8,288,000 L(ZF—=4F:
26,227,0007C) °
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29.Material related party transactions (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(v)

(vii

Rental expenses were paid to a subsidiary of TIH for leasing
of properties amounted to $2,788,000 (2013: $2,951,000)
and for leasing of audio and visual equipment amounted
to $1,824,000 (2013: $5,309,000). The amount receivable
by the Group at the year end amounted to $Nil (2013:
$246,000).

Management fee amounted to $26,985,000 (2013:
$22,614,000) and sales rebate amounted to $1,931,000
(2013: $Nil) were paid to JCDecaux Cityscape Limited
("JCDecaux Cityscape”), a fellow subsidiary of a non-
controlling shareholder of a subsidiary of the Company,
for the provision of management and agency services in
relation to bus shelters. The amount payable to JCDecaux
Cityscape at the year end amounted to $3,981,000 (2013:
$3,824,000).

The Group paid a service fee to JCDecaux Cityscape for
the logistic function provided to the Group in relation
to the bus shelters under the media sales business. The
amount due to JCDecaux Cityscape at the year end
amounted to $41,000 (2013: $41,000).

(viii) Mobile data subscription fees were paid to a subsidiary of

a substantial shareholder of the ultimate holding company
of the Group for mobile data transmission services. The
amount payable by the Group at the year end amounted to
$887,000 (2013: $926,000).

Remuneration for key management personnel, including
amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed
in note 8 and certain of the highest paid employees as
disclosed in note 9, is as follows:

9. BREANTHNEARS (4)

B 5

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(%)
REBAHEY ¥ £ 52,788,000 (= F
—=F:2951,000) R EFERESE
1,824,000 (=& — EE 5,309,000 7T ) [4] &,
BNBARSNEEER -REXR AEEEK
%KIE\Z%TELszi 246,0007C) °

AEERAREEHE T RE=EERRIEREN
ERREARARA(ESREDXNEZES
#26,985,000 (=% fzi : 22,614,00077:)
FHEEMEH1,931,000 (=8 —=4:

JT) ZRERARFMER TﬁH Hxﬁxﬁﬂ’]ﬂ
ZMBAR - RER BN TFTRSRENTER

3,981,000c(=ZF—=% : 3,824,000 7T) °

) ARERERREAASEREAHUE L EE=S
REHEXBRATHRIREAREREX
NRBE - RFER BN TR EHE’]%KIEZ%

41,000 (=T —=% : 41,00073) °

TEBBERFERERADEEEERE I T
AREERNREERAREERRNNBEARINE
F o RER - A% EfE T IE A 887,000 7T
(ZFE—=% :926,0007T) °

I%‘& BEASHME (BEMZ8MRESNTA
REAEENHBERMEIARENTETRS
%’?%1@5 RSB

2014 2013
$'000 $'000
Fr T
Short-term employee benefits EHESREA 11,926 11,675
Post-employment benefits BBz EA 84 75
12,010 11,750
Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to connected (x) BEBEXSH EmHAAERME
transactions
The related party transactions in respect of licence fees FRRNTHEMBARINGEFE LY ZREME
and audio and visual equipment rental expenses payable ,\E’ﬁﬁ URkENTFEERENEREENSEBE
to subsidiaries of TIH and management fee payable RHHEKAER %Tﬁi BERH(EER

to JCDecaux Cityscape above constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The disclosures
required by Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are provided
on pages 30 to 35 of the annual report.

The related party transactions in respect of service fee
paid for logistic function payable to JCDecaux Cityscape,
rental expense for leasing of properties payable to a
subsidiary of TIH and the mobile data subscription fees
payable to a subsidiary of a substantial shareholder of the
ultimate holding company constitute continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
However, they are exempt from the disclosure requirements
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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30.Immediate and ultimate controlling party

31

At 31 December 2014, the Directors consider the
immediate parent and ultimate controlling party of
the Group to be KMB Resources Limited and TIH
respectively. KMB Resources Limited is incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands while TIH is incorporated
in Bermuda and listed in Hong Kong. TIH produces

financial statements available for public use.

.Accounting estimates and judgements

The key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(a) Depreciation
Fixed assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives. The Company
reviews annually the useful life of an asset. The
depreciation expense for future periods is adjusted
if there are significant changes from previous

estimates.

Impairment of fixed assets and intangible assets
Fixed assets and intangible assets are assessed at
each balance sheet date to identify indications that
they may be impaired. Such indications include
physical damage of a fixed asset and a decrease
in the revenue derived from an intangible asset
or fixed asset. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the intangible asset or fixed
asset is estimated. The recoverable amount of an
intangible asset or fixed asset is based on value-
in-use calculations. These calculations use cash
flow projections based on reasonable assumptions
that represent management’s best estimate of the
range of economic benefits from the asset over its

remaining useful life.

30.EERBRRERAT

73_/\_

Z-WFE+-_A=+—HB EERAR

AEBENERS AR RKREERR A D B

A KMB Resources Limited & &\ & o

KMB

Resources Limited P B fz & BF & &% fit A%

AR

m e

31

MEBARBRETMRLRNER £
HBEREVBERRABRIRALHE -

B R fhE R A

AT A TEEM[GHERRR

(a)

e
BEEENRBEMFTAIERAFHUER
EERERE c ARFBFRAEENAE
REH - WBER[RFAREEAES - AKX
RPFEMFTERSELAE

BEEERBILEERE
AEERBEAERFEEATEEREN
BEAORETR - ZETREBEETE
Emiﬁﬁﬁ&ﬂﬁéﬁiIEQF%E
EriE IR D o BT EEMA L FRER
%’$%l%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ§%lﬁ§%%
AT E R ﬁ%ﬁ&iliﬁﬁmTW
EEEEEREENE  ZFAHEERE
ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁmﬁ@ﬂmﬁﬁﬁ&%ﬁ%

BHEEERE  Liktr NAERFHET
EE{E/ T E T8 E'J
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31.Accounting estimates and judgements
(continued)

(c)

Impairment of accounts receivable and other
receivables

The Group maintains impairment losses for bad
and doubtful debts for estimated losses resulting
from the inability of the debtors to make required
payments. The Group bases the estimates of
future cash flows on the ageing of the accounts
receivable balance and debtors’ credit-worthiness.
A considerable level of judgement is exercised by
management when assessing the credit-worthiness
of each individual customer and the collectability of
each accounts receivable balance. Any increase or
decrease in impairment losses for bad and doubtful
debts would affect the Group's results in future

years.

32.Non-adjusting post balance sheet events

(a)

On 9 January 2014, AdSociety Advertising Agency
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
entered into an equity transfer agreement to sell
and transfer its entire equity interest in an investee
to an independent third party at RMB30,000,000
(equivalent to HK$37,332,000). Subsequent to 31
December 2014, the entire amount of consideration
net of withholding tax has been received from the
independent third party in connection with the
transfer of the entire equity interest.

After the balance sheet date, the Directors proposed
a final dividend and a special dividend. Further

details are disclosed in note 11(a).
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NR.IAERLEEHRER
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—mE—ANB  ARANEEM
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33.Possible impact of amendments, new

standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended
31 December 2014

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a few amendments and new
standards which are not yet effective for the year ended
31 December 2014 and which have not been adopted in
these financial statements. These include the following
which may be relevant to the Group.

WBVEEMERBE-ZFE-—DTODF+=A

St-RLEFERRERNENET
MEARZREBURERNEE

BEAMBHRTIEAY  FAEAMHLE
ERMZERBE_T-—NF+_A=1—
HIEFERARERNET R —BEFLER - M
AHBRRLBRAZER LR - B
AT EARBHRNER -

Effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after
RTHE#g 2%

IR S BB AR

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38, Clarification of acceptable

methods of depreciation and amortisation
(BBETTERNE 16 SERCEEBSFERINE 38 SHHEET »
[EEHER#HZ JEZHE ]

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

(BRUBREERDE 15  [FPHEAUNA ]

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

(BRUBREERDEI SR [2H LA/

1 January 2016

1 January 2017
—E—tH—-A—H

1 January 2018
=F-N\¥—-H—H

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these amendments is expected
to be in the period of initial application, and is not yet
in a position to conclude whether the adoption of them
will have a significant impact on the Group's results of
operations and financial position.

In addition, the requirements of Part 9, “Accounts and
Audit”, of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap.622) come into operation from the Company’s first
financial year commencing after 3 March 2014 (i.e. the
Company’s financial year which began on 1 January
2015) in accordance with section 358 of that Ordinance.
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the expected impact of the changes in the Companies
Ordinance on the consolidated financial statements in
the period of initial application of Part 9. So far it has
concluded that the impact is unlikely to be significant
and will primarily only affect the presentation and
disclosure of information in the consolidated financial
statements.

AEEREFEBRRXFETENRERS
RANTE  EDRERESEHAKENE
BRENMBHRRNELEAZEMEBE® °

SN - ¥ E B R AR HI(5E 622 F ) 5 358 fk
FIMERBERBFINRERARBAE=-F
—E=Z A= RKMAAH & B RFE(RA
RAR_ZE—hF - A - BHRANMRFE)
Bt e AEBEFERARKRINESHEEF K
FEREBMBHGEUBRROFEAZE -
SRS &ER  LARFETSEEXRN L2
HEBRRGAMBHRR2NRKEEN A

7. 75| 22 48
TR -
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

T FEMBHRE
For the years ended 31 December
BE+T-A=1T—HLEE
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T BB T BET T BET T
RESULTS B
Turnover =20 459,462 462,002 421,154 371,491 325,231
Other revenue and other net  E bl A K HAb
income Wi FRE 15,756 26,212 22,019 25,837 31,213
Total revenue PN L] 475,218 488,214 443,173 397,328 356,444
Profit from operations RERR 48,087 98,882 96,490 79,193 61,114
Gain on disposal of other HERMESmMEE
financial assets Uk %% 36,603 — — — —
Reversal of impairment loss/ Hit S m&EERE
(impairment loss) on other EiEEE
financial assets OREEE) — 25,611 — (109,606) (110,000)
Loss on disposal of HEWE A EE
subsidiaries — — — (468) —
Profit/(loss) before taxation BR¥EEAIEF
(E518) 84,690 124,493 96,490 (30,881) (48,886)
Income tax 8% (8,008) (15,871) (16,991) (12,863) (8,269)
Profit/(loss) for the year KEERA
(E18]) 76,682 108,622 79,499 (43,744) (57,155)
Attributable to: PR
Equity shareholders of the FINUNET)E S
Company 70,587 104,853 74,817 (48,637) (61,641)
Non-controlling interests RS 6,095 3,769 4,682 4,893 4,486
Profit/(loss) for the year KEERR A
(E518) 76,682 108,622 79,499 (43,744) (57,155)
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At 31 December

Rt=ZA=+-HLFE

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T BB T BET T BT T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ¥ERERE
Fixed assets BEE&EE 39,255 48,938 49,122 64,672 8,406
Intangible assets B &R 2,441 — — — —
Non-current prepayments  JERENFE (S FIE 7,444 12,484 3,741 1,667 44,268
Other non-current financial HEMIEREEH
assets EE — 8,124 81,296 80,872 219,140
Deferred tax assets EIERIEEE 4,311 3,770 2,618 3,060 4,067
Net current assets REEEZEE 623,316 611,265 519,494 491,540 459,873
Total assets less current EEAERRDE
liabilities & 676,767 684,581 656,271 641,811 735,754
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEEE (125) (129) (157) (81) (86)
Net Assets EEZFE 676,642 684,452 656,114 641,730 735,668
Capital and reserves BRAR FES
Share capital i 99,737 99,737 99,737 99,737 99,737
Reserves EEE 566,305 575,010 546,441 530,739 628,455
Total equity attributable to 7R B RRERFEG
equity shareholders of FEmiAEE
the Company 666,042 674,747 646,178 630,476 728,192
Non-controlling interests FFIERRES 10,600 9,705 9,936 11,254 7,476
Total Equity A 676,642 684,452 656,114 641,730 735,668
20145  BRABERBERAA
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Closure of Register of Members
EEnERNBFELFE

For the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement
to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting:
13 May 2015 to 15 May 2015 (both dates inclusive)

%Eiﬂﬁitﬂﬁﬂﬁiﬁfﬁkéjﬁﬁééiiﬁ%ﬂ’ﬂ%ﬂ :
) —HFRA+T=RE"ZE-hAFHATHABR(BEEEM
B

For the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement
to the proposed final dividend and special dividend:
21 May 2015 to 22 May 2015 (both dates inclusive)

ARERRERESRORER SRS NER
—z— ?Eﬁﬂ +—BE—Z—REFA-_+t-H(BEH
B A

Annual General Meeting RREFKE

Date & Time  : 15 May 2015 at 11:30 a.m.

Venue : Novotel Century Hong Kong, Plaza 4,
Lower Lobby, 238 Jaffe Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

H HA K2 B [ —E—RFAATHA
J::F‘fj—ﬁ-rf‘f’

HhE . EBEFHIZEE 23857
B = S A E R R
AREEEE

Dividends B &

Interim : Nil

Final (Proposed) :

Special (Proposed) :

Payment date :
(Final dividend
and special
dividend)

B

REA (R

AR 2 (%)

Ik Z% B 2 (GREFRR 8
REFRIARE)

Registered Office =&

Clarendon House, 2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda

Principal Office B EE

9 Po Lun Street, Lai Chi Kok, Kowloon, Hong Kong
EENESRAEHENS

Telephone &7 : (852) 2746 5200

Facsimile fEE : (852) 2744 7854
http://www.roadshow.com.hk/

Auditors % R

KPMG
8/F, Prince’s Building, 10 Chater Road, Central, Hong Kong

ESE SRR
BERIRETE 10K FAE81E

HK3.85 cents per share
HK4.10 cents per share
2 June 2015
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